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IIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AGPO
CEO
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lnformotion Communicotion Technology
lnternotionol Finonciol Reporting Stondords
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Kenyo Leother Development Authority
Kenyo Leother Development Council
Locol Purchose Order
Locol Service Order
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Micro, Smoll & Medium Enterprises
Noirobi City County Government
Public Finonce Monogement
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Public Sector Accounting Stondord Boord
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Stote Corporotions ond Advisory Committee
Squore Meters
To be Advised
Troiners of Troinees
Troining & Production Centre for Shoes lndustry
University of Noirobi
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I. KEY COUNCIL INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(o) Bockground informollon
The Kenyo Leother Development Council (KLDC) is o Stote Corporotion estoblished
by the Government of Kenyo under the Kenyo Leother Development Council Order,
201I (Legol Notice No. ll4 of the Kenyo Gozette supplement No. ll3 of 9tn
September 2011, under the Stote Corporotion Act (Cop 445), lows of Kenyo. The
Councilwos initioted os o speciolized ogency to drive the Government's ogendo on
the development of leother industry. To ochieve this, the Council is expected to
regulote ond focilitote the growth of the industry. The principol mondote of the
Council is to drive the tronsformotion of the leother volue choin in the Country from o
row moteriol/semi-processed export driven sector to o finished leother product
monufocturing industry. KLDC is therefore o key driver of the "Big Four" Agendo under
the Monufocturing Pillor. The roodmop to this success is embedded on strotegic
objectives which specificolly oddress the key chollenges focing it. The strotegic
objectives ore oligned to the Council's mondote.

(b) Principol Activities
The principol octivity/function of the Council os mondoted by Kenyo Leother
Development Council Order,20ll (Legol Notice No. l14 of the Kenyo Gozette
supplement No. ll3 of 9tn September 20,l l, under the Stote Corporotion Act (Cop
446), lows of Kenyo ore:
i) To provide odvisory services to the Cobinet Secretory on motters reloting to

processing of ond trode in hides, skins, leother ond leother goods for plonning
purpose;

ii) To promote, direct, coordinote, regulote, ond hormonize oll octivities in the
leother sector;

iii) To oversee licensing in the leother sector;
iv) To undertoke reseorch ond development octivities in the leother industry;
v) To Enforce complionce with set stondords in colloborotion with other relevont

institutions in the industry.
vi) To Mobilize technicol ond finonciol support for the leother sector.
vii) To Collect, store, onolyze, ond disseminote doto on leother.
viii) To Perform ony other function, os the Cobinet Secretory mqy consider necessory.

)\
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(c) Key Monogement
The Council's doy-to-doy Monogement wos under the following key orgons
1. Boord of the Council
2. Chief Executive Officer/Secretory
3. The Secretoriot

(d) FlducloryMonogemenl
The Key Monogement Personnel who held office during the finonciol yeor ended
30m June 2022 ond who hod direct fiduciory responsibility ore:

t.
z.
J.

4.

5.
6.

7.

Chief Executive Officer
Director, Technicol Services
Director, Corporote Services

Corporotion Secretory /Heod of Legol
Ag. Monoger, Finonce & Accounts
Principol Supply Choin Monogement Officer
Principol lnternol Auditor

Dr. lssock M. Noor, PhD
Mr. Chorles Ndungu
Mr. Mohommednoor A. lsocko
Ms Njeri Chege
CPA Justus Emeri
Mr. Erick Rithoo Kinoti

CPA Albert Ariku
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Kenyo Leother Devebpmcnt Council
Annuol Roprt I ltnffial$airmrtilr for th. !r.or.nd.d W Junc, 20212

(e) FlducloryOverrlghtArongements
The Boord of Directors ore the governing body for the Council providing oversight
functions. ln dischorging its duties, the Boord delegotes its role to vorious committees:
Finonce & Governonce, Humon Resource, Risk & Complionce, Technicol & Strotegy
ond Audit. The resolutions of the Boord ore implemented by the Monogement.

COUi{CII BANKER
Kenyo Commerciol Bonk
P. O. Box 14959- 00800
NAIROBI, KENYA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Auditor Generol
Office of the Auditor Generol
Anniversory Towers, University Woy
P.O. Box 30084-00100

NAIROBI, KENYA.

PRINCIPAT LEGAI ADVISOR

The Attorney Generol
Stote Low Office -Horombee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112-00200

NAIROBI, KENYA.

coul{crl coirTAcr
Cell-Phon ei 070461 77OS 107A9386000
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2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OI THE COUNCIT

3.

Mr Froncis Munywoki
Choirperson of lhe
Boord

Mr. Froncis Munywoki wos oppointed Choirmon of KLDC Boord
on 6th October 2021. He holds on MBA from London Business

School (UK) ond The Whorton School (USA). He olso holds o
degree in Electricol & Communicotions Engineering from Moi
University (Kenyo). He is o professionolwith extensive experience
leoding operotions, strotegy ond business progrommes thot
leveroged revenue growth, influenced society ond improved
lives. His experience spons ocross Fost Moving Consumer Goods
(FMCG), Bonking, lnformotion Technology (lT), ond Medio
industries in Africo, Europe ond Asio. Froncis is o Boord member
of Modison Generol lnsuronce ond hod previously served in the
Boords of Kenyo Privote Sector Allionce (KEPSA) ond Eost Africon
Business Council (EABC).

He is Culturolly sensitive, commerciolly ostute, results driven ond
o true believer of Africo lntegrotion ond prosperity.

Ms Elizobelh Komou
Member

M/s Elizobeth is o foshion ond interior Designer with mony yeors
ond wide experience in Kenyo ond Eost Africo. She holds o
Diplomo in Foshion ond lnterior Design ond is olso o business
person.

Mr Vlncent Morube
Member

Mr. Vincent Morube wos oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of
Directors by the Cobinet Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture,
Livestock, Fisheries & Co-operotives vide Gozette Notice No.
I 1495 of 29th October 2021. He holds o BSC, lnformotion
Technology ond on MBA from the Notionol Americon University,
USA. He brings on boord extensive leodership, strotegic, ond
entrepreneurship skills.

vil
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5

6

Mrs Silvqno Koporo
Member

Mrs. Silvono Koporo wos oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of
Directors by the Cobinet Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture,
Livestock, Fisheries & Co-operotives vide Gozette Notice No.
I 1495 of 29th October 2021. Mrs. Koporo, hotds o BSc

Communicotion (mojor) from Moi University ond o Mosters in
lnternotionql Studies from the University of Noirobi. She hos over
fifteen (15) yeors working experience in the bonking industry. She
currently olso serves os o director in the Boord of Fortune Credit
Limited, q micro-finonce compony, in which she choirs the sociol
impoct ond climote chonge committee.

Mr Joseph N. Mbogo
Rep. PS Stote
Deporlmenl of
liveslock

Mr. Mbogo holds o Moster's of Science degree in Leother
Technology (University of Northompton-UK, 2005), Bochelors of
Science degree (University of Noirobi, .l990). 

He hos served in
government in vorious positions storting os o high schoolteocher
with the TSC, lecturer of both Ahiti-Kobete ond University of
Noirobi, o reseorcher of Kenyo lndustriol Reseorch ond
Development lnstitute (KlRDl). He is currently the Director of
Leother Development, Stote Deportment of Livestock ond
olternote Director KLDC to the Principol Secretory, Stote
Deportment of Livestock.

Mrs Florence Hegorty
Member

Mrs. Florence Hegorty wos oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of
Directors by the Cobinet Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture,
Livestock, Fisheries & Co-operotives vide Gozette Notice No.
I 1495 of 29tn October 2021 . She holds o mosters in Rurol

Development from the Notionol University of lrelond, Golwoy,
Certificote in HR monogement from the Kenyo lnstitute of Humon
Resource, ond o postgroduote diplomo in peoce ond conflict
studies from the Africo Nozorene University. She hos wide
experience in project monogement, plonning & odministrotion,
leodership & governonce ond mediotion hoving worked of the
Jomo Kenyotto University of Agriculture ond Technology, Africo
Nozorene University omongst mony others institutions.

vlll
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7

8.

Mr Kogiri Kqmolu
Member

Mr. Kogiri Komotu wos oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of Directors
by the Cobinet Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock,
Fisheries & Co-operotives vide Gozette Notice No. 11495 of 29tn

October 2021. Mr. Kogiri holds on MBA from the University of
Noirobi. He hos vost experience in business, strotegy qnd
leodership. He hos served the country in mony copocities,
including os the Choirperson of the Teo Toskforce, 20.l5, qs o
Boord member of the Kenyo lnstitute of Moss Communicotion
omongst mony others.

Mr Johnson M.
Mwongi
Rep CS, Nolionol
Treosury

Mr. Johnson Mwongi is currently o Senior Deputy Director, Mocro
ond Fiscol Affoirs Deportment in the Notionol Treosury. He hos

served os on Economisl for 26 yeors in vorious Government
Ministries including in the Office of the Vice President ond Ministry
of plonning ond Notionol Development, Ministry of Environment
ond Noturol Resources, Ministry of Educotion, Science ond
Technology, Ministry of Heqlth ond the Notionol Treosury. He

holds o Bochelor of Arts (BA) in Economics ond Moster of Arts
(MA) in Economics degrees from the University of Noirobi.

Mr Joseph Mwogo
Member

Mr. Joseph Mwogo wos oppointed to the KLDC, Boord of
Directors by the Cobinet Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture,
Livestock, Fisheries & Co-operotives vide Gozette Notice No.
11495 of 29tn October 2021. He is troined ond quolified in

intelligence, criminology ond security from the University of
Noirobi ond in lsroel. He brings on boord vost experience in

leodership hoving worked of the Ministry of lnterior for 26 yeors.

He hos olso served os on elected civic leoder of the County
Council of Thiko. He is currently the Choirmon of Gochege Teo
Focfory.

9
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Mr. Jilo Komoro
Member

Mr. Jilo Komoro wos oppoinied to the KLDC, Boord of Directors
by the Cobinet Secretory, Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock,
Fisheries & Co-operotives vide Gozette Notice No. 11495 of 29tn

October 2021. Mr. Komoro holds o Bochelor of Science degree
in mothemotics & physics ond is currently undertoking his

executive MBA. Mr. Komoro is on ostute businessmon, with
exponsive experience in Boord leodership. He hos previously
served os the choirperson of the Kenyo Sugor Reseorch
Foundotion, choirperson of the Coost Woter Services Boord ond
os o director of the Boord of Kenyo Ports Authority.

Dr. lssock M. Noor
Secrelory/Chief
Executive Officer

Dr. Noor holds o PhD in Livestock Production Systems, Egerton
University, (2013), MSc (Animol Production), University of Noirobi,
,2009), BSc (Animol Heolth) Egerton University (.l995) ond o
Certificote (Animol Heolth) Ahiti- Nyohururu, (.l990). He hos over
35 yeors of public service experience with veterinory
deportment, teoching, reseqrch, ond odministrotion.

Ms Njeri Chege
Corporole Secrelory/
Heod of legol

Ms. Chege holds o Bochelor of Lows (LL.B) (Hons) degree from
the U.O.N (Porklonds) 2003, ond o post groduote diplomo from
the Kenyo School of Low. She is on Advocote of the High Court
of Kenyo, with over fifteen (1 5) yeors of experience in the legol
field ond o member of the Low Socieiy of Kenyo. She is o
Certified Public Accountont of Kenyo C.P.A (K) ond Certified
Public Secretory of Kenyo CPS(K).

She is possionote obout the rule of low ond prudent
monogement of public resources ond sound public governonce
policies.

I
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3. MANAGEMENT TEAM

?

Dr lssock M.
Noor, PhD

Dr. Noor holds o PhD in Livestock Production Systems,
Egerton University, (20.l3), MSc (Animol Production),
University of Noirobi, (2009), BSc (Animol Heolth)
Egerton University (1995) ond o Certificote (Animol
Heolth) Ahiti- Nyohururu, (.l990).
He hos over 35 yeors of public service experience
with veterinory deportment, teoching, reseorch, ond
odministrotion.

Chief
Execulive
Officer/
Secrelory

2

Mr Chqrles M.
Ndunqu

Mr. Ndungu holds o BSc Leother Technology degree
(2004), Certificote in Hides ond Skins lmprovement
( I 981 ). He hos ottended courses in Cluster
Monogement, Leother Finishing, ond Business
lncubotion.

Direclor,
Technicol
Service

3.

Mr
Mohommednoor
A. lsocko

lsocko hos o weolth of HR professionol experience
sponning over 14 yeors in vorious orgonisotions,
including County Public Service Boord of Morsobit os
Boord Secretory/Chief Executive Officer, Kenyo
Meot Commission os Chief Humon Resource &
Administrotion Monoger. lsqcko hos held vorious
portfolio os Humon Resources Officer in vorious
orgonizotion.

A Humon Resource Professionolwith vost experience
in monogement, lsocko holds Mosters in Business
Administrotion from the University of Noirobi ond o
Bochelor of Commerce (Humon Resource
Monogement) from the some university. He holds
higher notionol diplomo from lnstitute of Humon
Resource Monogement ond Diplomo in Public
Administrotion from lnstitute of Golilee (lsroel).

Director,
Corporote
Service

xl
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4

Ms Njerl Chege

Ms. Chege holds o Bochelor of Lows (LL.B) (Hons)
degree from the U.O.N (Porklonds)2003, ond o post
groduote diplomo from the Kenyo School of Low.
She is on Advocqte of the High Court of Kenyo, with
over fifteen (l 5) yeors of experience in the legol field
ond o member of the Low Society of Kenyo. She is o
Certified Public Accountont of Kenyo C.P.A (K) ond
Certified Public Secretory of Kenyo CPS(K).

She is possionote obout the rule of low ond prudent
monogement of public resources ond sound public
governonce policies.

Corporollon
Secrelory
/Heod of
[egol

5.

Mr PoulM.
Ephontus

I
J

Poul is o former Employee of Stote Deportment of
Livestock os on Acting Director Leother
Development. BSc. (Hons.) Moteriols Technology
(Leother) from the University of Northompton (UK)
ond MSc. Environmentol Legislotion ond
Monogement -ongoing

He is o Visionory, Strotegic ond Tronsformotive
Leoder ond on expert in formuloting Environmentol
ond Leother Policies, Developing Leother Strotegies
ond Enocting Environmentol Legislotions. He is the
founder & choirmon of Kenyo Associotion of Leother
Technologist ond Scientists (KALTS), o professionol
body for Leother Development Professionols.

Monoger,
Copoclty
Bulldlng

6.

Dr Ahmed A.
Hosson, PhD

Holds o BSc (Hons) from Northompton University U.K.
Mosters in Business Administrotion (MBA) Strotegic
Monogement option from Kenyo Methodist
University ond Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administrotion (Strotegic Monogement option from
Jomo Kenyotto University of Agriculture Technology,
Noirobi Kenyo.
Holds o thirty-five yeors' experience in the leother
industry.

Monoger,
Quollty
Assuronce &
Compllonce

xI
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Mr John Otieno
Okumu

John holds MSc in Environmentol Plonning &
Monogement - Moseno University, BSc in Moteriol
Science (Leothed - University of Northompton,
Certificote in Hides & Skins lmprovement - AHITI
Kobete, KCE certificote from Mowego Technicol
School. A leother professionol with over 34 yeors of
experience.

Monoger,
Promolions &

Morkellng

B.

Mrs Yvonne K.

Nkolbonl

Yvonne is o Humon Resource proctitioner with over
10 yeors of experience. She hos vost experience in

recruitment, troining, discipline, employee relotions,
performonce monogement ond rewords
monogement. She hos o bochelor's degree in

Humon Resource Monogement ond is o member of
the lnstitute of Humon Resource Monogement.

Monoger,
Humon
Resources &
Adminlstrotlon

I

CPA Justus Emeri

Justus holds MSc in Logistics Monogement - University
of Lincoln (UK), o finolist student of MSc Development
Finonce (Strothmore University) ond B. Com
(Finonce) from JKUAT. He is on ostute professionol

with vost knowledge ond experience in Public
Finonce, occounting, ouditing & ossuronce ond
operotions monogement. He is o Certified
Accountont ond o member of the lnstitute of
Certified Public Accountonts of Kenyo (ICPAK) ond
lnstitute of lnternol Auditors (llA).

Ag. Monoger,
Flnonce &
Accounls

Eric is the heod of procurement ond supply choin
monogement function of the Council. He is

seosoned professionol in supply choin monogement
ond governonce in both public ond privote sector.
He is o finolist Moster of business odministrotion ond
o bochelor of commerce degree (procurement ond
supply choin Monogement) holder, with CPA port ll

certificotion. He is o member of the Kenyo lnstitute of
Supplies Monogement (KISM).

Prlnclpol
Supply Choln
Monogemenl
Offlcer

10.

Mr Erlck
Rilhqo Kinotl

xilt



Kenyo Leother Development Council
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4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

It is qn honour to present the onnuol report ond finonciol stotements for the
finonciol yeor (FY) 2021/2022. This report is o reflection of the commitment of the
newly reconstituted Boord ond monogement in striving to ochieve impoctful
interventions lo grow the leother industry. The industry is expected to continue to
be o priority sector for industriolizotion under the next Government odministrotion
ond mognify the centrol role of the Kenyo Leother Development Council (KLDC)
in the sector's development ond promotion of the vorue choin.

The Boord ond the monogement hove ensured thot the Council dischorges its
mondote through the reolizotion of the strotegic objectives set in the strotegic
plon FY 2017/2018-2021/2022. The focus for the Council hos therefore been to
focilitote excellence in the leother industry; enhonce leother sector infrostructure;
promote leother processing ond product monufocturing; ond promote leother
morketing. These objectives ore designed to tronsform Kenyo towords becoming
o leother monufocturing hub. The Boord hos olso token leodership in the
formulotion of the subsequent strotegic plon FY 2022/2023- 202612027, with
enhonced objectives with regord to strengthening the Council ond conquering
locol ond internotionol morkets, it is projected thot the plon sholl be lounched in
eorly months of the FY 2022/2023.

The Council hos continued to work in colloborotion with criticol portners locolly
ond internotionolly ond hos olso benefited from the support given by the Ministry
of Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries ond Co-operotives, the NotionolTreosury, other
Government deportments ond ogencies. ln oddition, the Boord hos revived o
robust stokeholder engogement initiotive os stipuloted in Chopter six (6) of the
Code of Governonce of Stote Corporotions, Mwongozo,20l5. These efforts hove
been criticol in the induction of the newly oppointed directors, identifying industry
chollenges ond focus oreos for the Boord during their term in office.

Core Mondole

ln the finonciol yeor, the chollenges orising from the Covid-19 pondemic were
significontly reduced, olthough it continued to be o foctor in operotions. There
wos therefore on increose in the implementotion of criticol octivities, progroms
ond projects with o notoble increose in copocity building of industry ployers
outreoch progrommes, stokeholder engogement, Boord ond stoff troining.

The objective of enhoncing the leother sector infrostructure wqs met through the
continued development of the Kenyo Leother lndustriol Pork (KLIP). Notobly, the
construction of the Common Effluent Treotment Plont (CETP) hos progressed well
os the mochinery instollotion is olmost complete. However. the completion hos
been curtoiled by the nuonces of joint implementotion with the Export Processing
Zones Authority (EPZA) qnd lock of sufficient funding from the Notionol Treosury.

I
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Construction of the four (4) leother industriol worehouses which ore expected to
provide o "plug ond ploy" incentivised focility for investors is of on odvonced
stoge, but lock of odequote funding is o chollenge. The enoblers of the project
such os the Ministry of Roods, Kenyo Power, Tonothi Woter Works Development
Agency ond The Ministry of ICT ore of vorious stoges in the implementotion of their
respective components. Construction of the rood network to occess the pork ond
within the pork hos begun. Tonothi Woter Works Development Agency hos olso
commenced development of the infrqstructure necessory for woter provision.
Since the development of these criticol infrostructure ond utilities will bolster the
competitiveness of the Leother Pork, the monogement continues to pursue the
implementotion of oll components, including ICT infrostructure ond security. As
the operotionolizotion of the KLIP becomes o reolity, the Boord hos considered
the first droft lnvestor Occupotion Criterio which sholl be opproved in the next
finonciol yeor for opprovol ond odvertisement.

With respect to the Council's objective of promotion of leother processing ond
product monufocturing, significont strides hove been mode in the
operotionolizotion of the Koriokor CMF which is expected to bolster locol
footweor ond leother goods competitiveness. Since the honding over of the
focility on the l4th of July,2021 to KLDC by the Noirobi City County Government,
the customizotion of the focility is complete, os well os the instollotion, testing,
troining ond commissioning of the mochinery. The Boord hos olso opproved the
initiol Korikor Business Model which is expected to be the blueprint for operotions.
Progress hos olso been mode with regord to the mopping ond engogement with
the potentiol beneficiories from the Koriokor leother cluster. lt is projected thot the
focility will be operotionol in the first-holf of the FY 202212023.

KLDC hos continued to nurture the Troining ond Production Centre for Shoe
lndustry (TPCSI), Thiko, in order to ensure thot it qchieves its strotegic objective of
supporting growth in the leother sector through oppropriote skills development.
The instollotion ond operotionolizotion of thirty-three mochines in the focility wos
completed ond is expected to enhonce incubotion for the Micro-Smoll
Enterprises (MSEs) in the leother sector. The Boord took cognizonce of the
chollenges regording the registered ownership of the focility ond now receives
quorterly reports for the finonciol ond sociol impoct porometers of TPCSI, which
will inform strotegic decisions with regord to the Centre's future.

I om pleosed to report thot, in the finonciolyeor, the Kenyo Leother Development
Policy which is intended to provide o dedicoted roodmop for development of
the sector wos successfully subjected to volidotion by stokeholders on the 2nd of
December,2021. lt hos now been forworded to the PS, Stote Deportment of
Livestock for considerotion ond onword tronsmission to Cobinet ond the Notionol
Assembly. lt is our hope thot given the importonce of the leother sector, the policy
sholl be finolised ond odopted before the end of the next finonciol yeor.
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Good Governonce & Humon Resource Copilol

The Directors hove in their first few months since oppointment given exemplified
service to the Notion. They hove benefited from induction through the Stote
Corporotions Advisory Committee (SCAC) seminor, stokeholder engogement, site
inspections ond benchmorking throughout the country ond in Ethiopio. This
comprehensive induction hos equipped the Boord to obly dischorge its oversight
duty, understond the principles of good governonce, the code of governonce of
stote corporotions (Mwongozo) ond their role ond responsibilities.

The Boord is committed in guiding the monogement in reolisotion of the Council's
key performonce indicotors contoined in the performonce controct. The Boord
hos overseen the posting of stoff to the Council's projects of TPCSI, Koriokor ond
the Leother Pok (Kenonie) to enhonce effectiveness. Humon resource gops hove
olso been noted in the oreos of corporote communicotions, engineers, omongst
others. There ore plons, subject to ovoilobility of funds, to ochieve the full stoff
estoblishment currently of one hundred ond twenty-eight (l 28).

I om indeed hopeful thot, os the country tronsitions to o new politicol
dispensotion, the prioritizotion of the leother industry will continue. This will sustoin
the momentum in leother sector development ond promotion of the volue choin.
By doing so, the sector sholl contribute significontly towords weolth creotion,
income generotion opportunities ond hove on importont sociol impoct in
improving the lives ond livelihoods of Kenyons.

.l
q-+-

is M. Munywoki
Cholrmqn of lhe Boord

I
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5. REPORT OI THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I present the Annuol Report ond Finonciol Stotements for Kenyo leother
Development Council for the yeor ended 30th June 2022. The Council hos
continued to execute its mondote of driving the tronsformotion of the leother
volue choin in the Country from o rqw moteriol/semi-processed export-driven
sector to o finished leother product monufocturing industry. KLDC is therefore o
key driver of the "Big Four" Agendo under the Monufocturing pillor.

During the FY 202112022, the Council hos continued to focilitote o volue driven
ond sustoinoble leother industry os stipuloted in Kenyo's Vision 2030 ond the
estoblishing legol instrument, with the primory focus being the quolity of leother &
leother products for both locol ond export morkets.

ln the Finonciol Yeor, the Council's opproved budget is Kshs. 25.l.5 million. The
octuol expenditure is Kshs. 247.5 million which tronslote to o positive obsorption
rote of 98 per cent, enobling the Council to ochieve o high implementotion rote
for its plonned octivities for the finonciol yeor.

To optimize output omong the stoff, individuol employees sign Performonce
Controcting (PC) refocusing the Council to be keen on rewording high
performonce while of the some time building on the volues of the Council.
Employee engogement remoins o key priority going forword os we oim to
improve on the culture of our work environment. We oim to build o dynomic
Council which supports our strotegy ond growth ond to ochieve this end, the
Council continues to invest in proper ond efficient operotionol systems oimed ot
optimizing performonce ond copturing opportunities. The reolizotion of these
dreoms hos seen the Council grow its humon resource bose os well os ocquire on
Enterprise Resource Plonning (ERP) tool to enhonce productivity ond efficiency of
internol operotions during the yeor.

ln o bid to modernize operotions thot is qimed of enhoncing provision of common
monufocturing services, the Council hos completed the long deloyed instollotion
ond commissioning of modern mochinery/equipment of the Troining ond
Production Centre for Shoe lndustry (TPCSI), Thiko, ond Koriokor Common
Monufocturing Focility (KCMF), Noirobi.

During the yeor under review, the droft Kenyo Leother Development Policy hos
been volidoted by the stokeholders ond hos been submitted to the porent
Ministry for further processing. The volidotion exercise of the Policy is o criticol
precursor to the enoctment of the Kenyo Leother Development Authority (KLDA)
Bill.

I om pleosed to report o remorkoble progress in the construction, instollotion ond
equipping of the Common Effluent Treotment Plont (CETP), jointly implemented
by the Council ond the Export Processing Zones Authority (EPZA), by the
Controctor of the Kenyo Leother lndustriol Pork, Kenonie, Mochokos County. The
plont is now ol75% completion rote.
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ln view of the foregoing development, the Council hos oworded controcts for
construction of modern stote-of-the-ort leother industriol worehouses meosuring
5,000 squore meters ond 2,500 squore meters for tonneries ond leother producti
monufocturing, respectively, for 'plug ond ploy' fqster occupotion of the pork by
investors.

The Council hos olso initioted the review of its five-yeor Strotegic Plon for the
period FY 2022123 - 2026/27, which is set to be subjected to vorious stokeholders
before odoption.

I thonk the Boord of Directors for their leodership ond guidonce throughout the
yeor ond the members of stoff for their commitment towords ochievement of the
set t ets. I olso thonk our stokeho ders for their support ond ook forword to
cord workin g relotionship.

Dr. M. Noor, PhD
Chief Execullve Ofrlcer

T

xviii



- Kenyo Leolher Development Council
Annuol Report t Flnonciol Slolemenls for lhc ycor ended 30n Junc, 2022

a

6. STATEMENT OI COUNCI['S PERFORMANCE AGAINST STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES FOR
tY 2O2t/22
The Council's octivities ond projects ore in pursuqnt of reolizing the four
strotegic objectives of the current five-yeor strotegic plon 201 8 - 2022 ond the
notionol objective of tronsforming the leother industry into on internotionolly
competitive regionol leother ond leother products monufocturing hub. Eoch
strotegic objective oddresses porticulor requirements for continuous
improvement of performonce of the leothersector of row moteriol production,
leother processing ond product monufocturing. These strotegic objectives ore:

ln the drive towords the reolizotion of these objectives, the Council is

implementing vorious projects ond progroms thot inform the plonning of the
onnuol octivities. The plonned octivities for eoch yeor build on the
ochievements of the preceding yeor os well os lessons leorned or ony new
dynomic thot comes into ploy in the course of the yeor.

The current projects ond progroms include: -

i) Development of the Kenyo Leother lndustriol Pork in Kinonie Mochokos
County.

, ii) Estoblishment of o Common Monufocturing Focility (CMF) of Koriokor
Noirobi County.

Strolegic Objectives
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iii) Upgroding of Troining ond Production Centre for Shoe lndustry (TPCSI)

Thiko, Kiombu County.
iv) Development of notionol leother policy.
v) Hides ond skins quolity improvement progrom.

During the Finonciol Yeor 2019/2020, issues of quolity of hides ond skins were
identified os o mojor chollenge in the development of the sector ond the Council
initioted the development ond implementotion o notionol progrom for quolity
improvement.

Aport from the interventions under the strotegic objectives, other emerging
dynomics offected the performonce of the sector. During the yeor, the outbreok
of Covid 19 pondemic hod negotive effects on the sector resulting in shutdown
ocross the world thot slowed the consumption of leother products. The

internotionol economic slowdown reduced the country's moin exports of wet-
blue/crust leother offecting the locol row hides ond skins supply systems due to
reduced prices.

The Council ochieved its performonce torgets set for the FY 2020121 period for its
four strotegic pillors os indicoted in the toble below:

Toble 1.0: Stolemenl of Councll Performonce

T

Developme
ntofo
notionol
leother
oolicy

Finol droft
policy

Finolizotion of
droft nqtionol
leother policy

Droft finolized
ond
forworded to
the Ministry

Number of
Counties
Focilitoted

Troining ond
sensitizotion of
l0 counties (5
high livestock &
5 high sloughter)
identified

Enhonced
skills to
improve
quolity in 12
Counties

Plllor 1:
Focilitote
Excellence in
Leother
lndustry

lmproveme
nt of hides,
skins ond
leother
quolity

Number of
floyers
troined

Troin 200 floyers 210 floyers
troined

Slrotegic
objeclive

Specific
Objective

Key
pedormonce
indicotors

Aclivilies Achievements
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Number of
hides ond
skins
producers/
troders
sensitized

Sensitize 50
hides ond skins
troders

48 producers
sensitized

l2 TOTs

sensitized on
quolity
production

Pillqr 2:
Enhonce
Leother Sector
lnfrostructure

Provide o
modern
Common
Effluent
Treotment
Plont (CETP)

dl/o

Completion
Construction of
o CETP ond
other reloted
works

70%
Complete
mochine ond
equipment
instollotion
ongoing.

Provision of
plug ond
ploy
industriol
worehouses

cr,/o

Completion
Construction of
4 industriol
worehouses (2
of 2500SM &2 of
5000sM)

60%
Complete

Plllor 3:
Promote
Leother
Processing ond
Product
Monufocturing

Operotiono
lize Koriokor
Common
Monufoctur
ing focility

o,
/o

Completion
Completion of
Koriokor
worehouse

100%
complete

Number of
Mochines
delivered
ond instolled

Delivery ond
lnstollotion of 55
mochines/
equipment

65 mochines/
equipment
delivered ond
fully instolled
ond operotors
troined.

Upgrode of
Troining
ond
Production
Centre for
Shoe
lndustry
ITPCSI)

Number of
mochines
lnstolled

lnstollotion of 33
mochines

44 mochines
instolled

Number of
operotors
troined

Troining of l5
mochine
operotors
conducted

23 operotors
troined

Pillor 4:
Promotion of
Leother
Morketing

Enhonce
occess to
morkets

Morket
survey report

Corryout morket
survey of leother
products

One morket
survey done

Number of
MSMEs
promoted

Promote l0
MSMEs product

Products of l3
MSEs
promoted
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through the
website

through KLDC
website

Enhonce
footweor
ond leother
goods
competitiv
eness

Number of
MSMEs
occessing
TPCSI focility

Focilitote 25
MSMEs to
occess TPCSI
common
monufocturing
focility

27 MSMEs
occessed

Number of
MSMES
troined on
complionce
to stondords

Troin 50 MSMEs
monufocturing
leother products
on stondords
complionce.

56 MSMEs
troined
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7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The principol mondote of the Kenyo Leother Development Council (KLDC) is to
undertoke leother sector development ond promotion of the leother volue choin.
The Council dischorges its mondote in occordonce with the provisions in the
Kenyo Leother Development Council (Order) L.N. No. I l4 of 2011, under the Stote
Corporotions Act (Cop) 446 of the Lows of Kenyo. The Council's strotegic
objectives ore geored towords driving the tronsformotion of the leother volue
choin in the Country from o row moteriol/semi-processed export driven sector to
o finished leother products monufocturing industry.

KLDC is o key driver of the "Big Four" Agendo under the monufocturing pillor of
Vision 2030. The roodmop to ochieve success is embedded in the Strotegic Plon
for FY 2017/18- FY 2021/22. The strotegic objectives oddress the key chollenges
focing the leother sub-sector ond ore oligned to the Council's mondote. The
design of the Council's next Strotegic Plon for the FY 2022/2023 - FY 2026/2027 is
of on odvonced stoge ond is expected to be lounched in the next finonciolyeor.

The Council is porented by the Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries ond
Cooperotives, under the Stote Deportment of Livestock (SDL). The Boord is the
opex orgon ond wos reconstituted by the oppointment of Mr. Froncis M.
Munywoki os the Choirmon of the Boord with effect from the 6tn October, 2021
ond the oppointment of the following six independent Directors with effect from
28th October,2021:

i. Mr. Vincent Morube;
ii. Mrs. Silvono Koporo;
iii. Mrs. Florence M. Hegorty;
iv. Mr. Kogiri Komotu;
v. Mr. Joseph Mwogo; ond
vi. Mr. Jilo Komoro.

The Boord underwent extensive induction conducted by the Stote Corporotions
Advisory Committee (SCAC) os well os on industry-bosed induction. This hos
equipped the Boord to understond ond uphold the principles of good corporote
governonce ond dischorge their oversight role envisoged in the provisions of
Section (l 5) of the Stote Corporotions Act (Cop) 446 of the Lows of Kenyo ond
KLDC's enobling stotute. The section provides thot the Boord sholl be responsible
for the proper monogement of the offoirs of o stote corporotion ond sholl be
occountoble for the moneys; the finonciol business ond the monogement of the
entity.

The Boord delegotes its roles to the Council's monogement led by the Chief
Executive Officer who is the occounting officer. He is occountoble to the Notionol
Assembly in occordonce to Section (68) of the Public Finonce Monogement
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(PFM) Act of 2012, in ensuring thot the public resources ore used in o woy thot is

lowful ond outhorised; effective ond efficient; economicol ond tronsporent.

Corporote Governonce Principles
ln pursuit of the corporote objective, we hove committed to the highest level of
good governonce. KLDC strives to foster o culture thot upholds the Constitution
of Kenyo (20.l0), volues ond rewords exemplory performonce within cleor ethicol
stondords, corporote integrity, upholding respect for oll ond sofeguording
notionol interest.

The Boord dischorges its role ond functions in complionce with the enobling low,
the Stote Corporotions Act ond the requirements contoined in Mwongozo (The
code of Governonce for Stote Corporotions) ond oll other opplicoble lows, rules
ond regulotions. Mwongozo identifies the roles ond functions of the Boord which
should be exercised collectively. The roles ond functions include determinotion of
the orgonizotion's vision, mission, purpose qnd core volues; to set ond oversee the
overollstrotegy ond opprove polices of the Council; opprove the onnuol budget;
monitor the orgonizotion's performonce ond ensure sustoinobility; hire the CEO
ond opprove the oppointment of senior monogement stoff; ond ensure effective
communicotion with stokeholders.

The Boord governs the Council consistent with the stoted business strotegy
indicoted in the Council's volues of equity, teqm work, meritocrocy,
occountobility ond probity oll contributing to the commitment to tronsporency
ond high-quolity governonce system.

Conslitulion of lhe Boord of Direclors
Ihe Choirperson of KLDC is oppointed by the President of the Republic of Kenyo.
Ihe Principol Secretory of the Porent Ministry ond Notionol Treosury oppoint one
olternote eoch to the Boord. The Cobinet Secretory (CS) of the Porent Ministry
oppoints seven (7) independent Boord members ond the CEO is oppointed by
the CS upon recommendotion by the Boord.

Slze ond composlllon of lhe Boord
The Boord of Directors during the reporting yeor consisted of q choirperson; seven
(7) independent members; ond two olternotes- one to the PS of the Porent Ministry
ond the other the CS Notionol Treosury. The inspectorote of Stote Corporotions
(lSC) wos olso represented in the Boord by Mr. lsooc O. Odek.

The skills motrix for the Boord consists of individuols who possess extensive
experience in vorious disciplines, which ore opplicoble in the overqll governonce
of the Council ond ochieved the right bolonce of skills ond experience necessory
in decision moking.

T
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I
Toble l.l: Detoils of lhe Boord members d lhe finonciql

The Boord conducts its business through four committees; the Finonce ond
Governonce Committee; the Technicol ond Strotegy Committee; the HR, Risk &
Complionce Committee; ond the Audit Committee. A choirperson wos
oppointed for eoch committee from the independent members ond eoch
director served in of leost two (2) committees.

!nduclion ond Evoluolion
The Council focilitoted the induction of the new Boord members which wos
conducted by the Stote Corporotions Advisory Committee (SCAC). The Directors
fomiliorized themselves with the Council's operotions including the inspection of
the key Council's projects which ore of the Kenyo Leother lndustriol Pork (KLIP),

the Koriokor Common Monufocturing Focility (KCMF) ond the Troining ond
Production Centre for Shoe lndustry (TPCSI). ln oddition, the Boord undertook
stokeholder engogement ond surveyed operotions in key segments of the volue
choin such qs the tonneries, leother footweor ond products monufocturers
omongst others so os to identify focus oreos to be oddressed by the Boord. A port
of the Boord olso undertook o study-tour in Morch 2022 in Ethiopio to benchmork
with the thriving Ethiopion leother industry.

The onnuol SCAC Boord seltevoluotion for the FY 2021/2022 wos conducted on
the 28tn of July 2022 in the Stote Corporotions Monogement lnformotion System
(SCMIS) with the guidonce of SCAC officers. The results sholl be submitted in the
subsequent finonciol yeor.

1 Mr. Francis Munywoki Chairperson 06.10.2021 0s.r0.2024 lrt Masters Kitui
2. Mr. Joseph Mbogo AIt. PS SDL 06.07.2020 TBA N/A Masters Kirinyaga

3 Mr. Johnson Mwangi AIt. CS
Treasury

r7.07.2020 TBA N/A Masters Nyeri

4. Ms. Elizabeth Kamau Member 2r.10.2019 20.10.2022 2od Diploma Kiambu

5 Mr. Vincent Marube Member 28.t0.202t 27.10.2024 Irt Masters Kisii
28.10.20216. Mrs. Silvana Kaparo Member 27.t0.2024 Irt Masters Samburu

7 Mrs. Florence Hegarty Member 28.10.2021 27.t0.2024 Irt Masters Kajiado

8. Mr. Kagiri Kamatu Member 28.10.2021 27.10.2024 l8t Masters Kirinyaga

9 Mr. Joseph Mwago Member 28.10.2021 27.t0.2024 l8t Masters Gatundu

10. Mr. Jilo Komora Member 28.10.2021 27.10.2024 Irt Masters Tana River
ll Ms. Amina Wario Member 20.09.2018 19.09.202t Expired Diploma Isiolo

12. Mr. Stephen Karume Member 20.09.2018 19.09.2021 Expired Masters Kirinyaga
r3 Ms. Anne Lengerded Member 20.09.2018 19.09.2021 Expired Bachelor's Samburu

t4. Mr. Isaac Odek Rep.ISC TBA TBA N/A Masters Kisumu

l5 Dr. Issack M. Noor CEO 01.08.2021 31.07.2026 2d Doctorate Mandera

16. Ms. Njeri Chege Corp. Sec. 0l.l 1.2019 31.10.2024 Irt Master(En) Kiambu

Dsie of
r3r;xrinlmenl

Date of
erpirl

Ternr Qurlilication CountyName Designrtion
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Boord Meellngs
The newly constituted Boord convened for its inougurol meeting on l0t of
Februory, 2022 ol which the committees were reconstituted. Subsequently the
Boord in complionce with the directives by the Public Service Commission ond
the guidelines by SCAC held Boord committee meetings ond o full Boord meeting
of leost once in every quorter. Speciol meetings *ere occosionolly convened to
oddress urgent motters.

The regulor meetings ensured thot the Boord wos qble to exercise its oversight
role, undertoke continuous ossessment of performonce of the monogement ond
ensure olignment with the Council's strotegic objectives. The committees of the
Boord considered the ogendo in detoil ond mode recommendotions for
odoption in the full Boord meetings. The Directors received sufficient notice os
prescribed in Mwongozo ond boord popers were shored in odvonce to enoble
them prepore for the meetings.

The newly constituted Boord held its inougurol full Boord meeting on lOtn of
Februory 2022 which wos treoted os the deferred 2no quorter regulor full Boord
meeting ond two (2) full Boord meetings, it did not convene for ony speciol
meetings. Eoch of the newly constituted Committees held two quorterly meetings
except the Technicol ond Strotegy Committee which convened for one speciol
committee meeting.

The previous Boord which wqs not quorote ofter the expiry of the term of three
Directors on the l9t of September,2021, held the lst quorter committee meetings
ond the lst quorter full Boord meeting. ln oddition, they held two (2) speciol
meetings on the lStn of August 2021 (virtuol) ond on the l3tn September 2021, this
meeting wos odjourned for lock of quorum to the l5ttt of September 2021.

Toble 1.2: Boord m held ln lhe FY 202012021

Full Boord
Finonce ond Governonce
Audit
Humon Resource ond Risk Complionce
Technicol ond Strotegy
Ad hoc Committee

t

6

4

3

3

4

0

4

4

4

4

4

0
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I
Composition of Boord Commltlees
The Boord hos estoblished four (4) stonding committees thot ossist to dischorge its
functions. With the newly constituted Boord, the committees' members during the
yeor were os shown:

Toble 1.4: Boord Commitlees membersh

l. Finonce ond Governonce l.Mr. Vincent Morube -Choirperson
2.Mrs. Silvono Koporo -Member
3.Mr. Kogiri Komotu -Member
4.Mr. Johnson Mwongi -Member
5.Mr. Joseph Mbogo -Member
6.Dr lssock M. Noor -CEO/Secretory
7.Ms. Angelo Chege -Corp Secretory

2. Audit l.Mr. Jilo Komoro -Choirperson
2.Mr. Joseph Mwogo -Member
3.Ms. Florence Hegorty -Member
4.Ms. Elizobeth Komou -Member
5.Mr. Johnson Mwongi -Member
6.Mr. Albert Ariku -PlA/Secretory

3. Humon Resource ond Risk l.Ms. Florence Hegorty -Choirperson
Complionce 2.Ms. Elizobeth Kqmou -Member

3.Mrs. Silvono Koporo -Member
4.Mr. Vincent Morube -Member
5.Dr lssock M. Noor -CEo/Secretory
6.Ms. Angelo Chege -Corp Secretory

4. Technicol ond Strotegy l.Mr. Joseph Mwogo -Choirperson
2.Mr. Mr. Jilo Komoro -Member
3.Mr. Mr. Kogiri Komotu -Member
4.Mr. Joseph Mbogo -Member
5.Dr lssock M. Noor -CEO/Secretory
5.Ms. Angelo N. Chege -Corp Secretory

Flnonclol Monogemenl
During the FY 202112022 the Boord's finonciol monogement wos executed by the
CEO.

The Boord on the recommendotion of the Finonce & Governonce Committee,
considered, deliberoted, gove directions, omendments ond opproved the
quorterly finonciol stotements thot were submitted to NotionolTreosury.

-
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The Boord ocknowledges the need for strotegic portnerships ond encouroges the
porticipotion of the privote sector in our finonciol motrix. The pressing needs for
odditionol finoncing to complete the ongoing projects ond the cleor need for
tronsporency mokes engogement with ond reporting to the government qnd
other stokeholders criticol. The increosing requirement for prudent finonciql
monogement hos heightened the level of interest in the Council's opprooch to
risk monogement ond ossuronce.

The Council incurred o totol expenditure of Kshs. 15.4 million in focilitoting the
Boord meetings ond octivities which includes the stotutory gross monthly
honororium of KShs 87,000 poid to the choirmon.

Toble 1.5: The Boord ndilure

9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANATYSIS

Ihis onnuol report coptures the overoll performonce of the Council bosed on its
key interventions ond performonce indicotors in line with the performonce
controct. The report highlights the operotionol ond finonciol performonces,
chollenges in relotion to performonce monogement ond mojor risks corried out
during the yeor.

A. The Council's operoliono! ond finonciol performonce
The Council continues to deliver on its key mondote of undertoking leother
sector development ond promotion of the leother volue choin. The operotions
of the Council ore bosed on the strotegic plon 2017-2022 ond the
performonce controct. Presented below ore the discussion ond onolysis of
Council performonce for the period under review:

I

t

Mr Froncis Munywoki 768,742 180,000 r 13,200 504, r 98 1.896.140
Mrs Elizobelh Komou 320,000 u,M 384.400

Mr Vincenl Morube 240,000 382,m0 120,000 524,198 1,266, I 98
Mn Silvono Koporo 240,000 382,m0 r20,000 524, I 98 1.266. I 98
Florence Hegorty 240,000 325,400 45,555 sr 4,032 1.124.987
Mr Kogiri Komotu 260,000 109,000 369.000

Mr Joseph Mwooo 250,000 {n,4N r0,r50 505,648 1.196.198

Mr Komoro Jillo 20,000 38,400 20,000 78.100
Mr Joseph Mboqo 460,000 r 59,200 619.2m
Mr lsooc Odec 420,000 74,4W 494.4m
Mr Johnson Mwonoi 420,000 149,575 569.575

Ms Amino Worio r40,000 r96,000 80,000 416,000
Mrs Anne Lengerded 140,000 r32,100 80,000 352,400
Mr Slephen Korume r20,000 191,000 80,000 3?4,000
Other Boord Expenses 307,500 62r,905 382,800 670,W6 1,712,102 r,304,030 4,9r8,43it

IOIAT 764.742 t|.067.5m 3.392,280 555,705 382,800 670,096 4.28/,376 1.304.030 15.125.529

oHm
EX?EIISB

DtnEcTot DSAHOilONAilA $mt{G TIILIAGE NfiilNG TOIATMEDTAt ;otEtGil
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I i) FinonciolPerformonce
The overoll finonciol performonce of the Council wos more thon optimol
compored to previous finonciol yeor. There wos significont increose in
expenditure due to increose in operotionolizotion of the Council os o result of
plocement of the key personnel. The Comporotive onolysis of revenue ond
expenditure in the lost two yeors ore os presented below:

FY 2020 12021 KShs.'000' TPCSI SERVICE

CHARGES,2

DEVELOPMENT,

178,297

RECURRENT,

151,530

ERECURRENT ;DEVELOPMENT ITPCSISERVICECHARGES

Flgure 1.0: A grophicol presenlotion showlng income trends over the period 2O2O/21

FY 2021./2022 KShs. 'O00'

TPCSISER\IICE CHARGES
1,594

DEVELOPMENT

RECURRENT
r st.soo

Figure l.l: A grophicol presentotion showlng income trends over the perlod 202112022
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Revenue qnd Expenditure Anolysis
2so

r50

FY 201812019 Fy 2019/2020 Fy 2020/2A21 Fy 2021/2022
r REVENUE "Mitlions:' 83 170 164 t8t
TEXPENDITURE'Miltions' 124 145 2O7 222

Flgure 1.2: A grophlcolpresentollon showing revenue ond expendllure trends overlhe perlod
2017118 to 2O2O/21

During the period under review, o revenue of Kshs.l8l .4 million wos received ond
roised ogoinst on expenditure of Kshs. 221.9 milllon resulting in on operotionol
deficit of Kshs. 40.5 million.

ii) Operolionol Performonce
The overoll weighted oggregote performonce score for Council in FY 2021/22
wos 57% which is in the ronge of good. The summory of ochievement is os
presented in the figure 3 below:

222

1200

c
.9

5
U)
tn
\a

50
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% Achievemenl ln tY 2021122

49%

67%

t20%

7W%

80%

60%

40%

20o/o

0%

8L%

l; 30%

tN%

Promotion of local

content in
Procurement

t
Cross-Cutting

FIgure 1.3: A grophlcol presenlollon of operotlonol performonce for tY 2021/22

It is importont to note thot there wos o decreose in operotionol performonce
in the yeor under review os compored to prior yeor of 64%. This con be
ottributed to the plocement of initiol criticol stoff for service delivery. The
performonce could hove been even more if it were not the disruption coused
by the emergence of Covid-.l9 which led to scoling down of octivities to curb
the spreod of the pondemic. This hos resulted in deloy in commencement of
plonned octivities. This is due to the meosures token by governments on
conduct of businesses resulting in minimol movement of people ond goods,
offecting delivery services of the Council heodquorters ond TPCSI, Thiko.

B. Counci!'s complionce wilh slolulory requiremenls
During the yeor under review, the Council complied with oll its stotutory
obligotions including complionce to public procurement regulotions,
remittonce of P.A.Y.E, NHIF, NSSF, NITA ond HELB within the stipuloted
deodlines. KLDC Boord commits to implement internol control mechonisms in
line with the Ethics ond Anti-Corruption Commission Act No. 22 of 20,l I ond
Leodership ond lntegrity Act of 2012. The Council does not foresee ony
potentiol for contingent liobilities orising from non-complionce with stotutory
obligotions.

C. Key projects ond inveslmenl decislons lhe Councilis plonnlng/implemenling
The Council plons to continue implementing its projects qs per the Strotegic
Plon 2017-2022. This finonciol yeor, the Council is undertoking the following
projects:

Financial

Stewardship &
Discipline

Service Delivery Core Mandate AGPO
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i) Kenyo leqlher Pork
The Ministry of lndustry, Trode ond Enterprise Development ond the Ministry of
Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries & Co-operotives through the Kenyo Leother
Development Council (KLDC) ond Export Processing Zones Authority (EPZA), is

developing Kenyo's first Leother Pork of Kinonie, Mochokos County, to boost
locol production of leother ond leother products.

The Pork is situoted on o 500-ocre plot ond will consist of vorious industries ond
services to promote the growth of the leother sector in the country. The
ongoing works ore of different levels of completion os shown below: -
{ Fencing of the 500-ocre Leother lndustriol Pork complete.
+ Construction of Common Effluent Treotment Plont (l0.5MLD, 2.5MLD ond

reticulotion)-ongoing ond Z0% complete.
{ Construction of industriol worehouses for tonneries ond leother goods

monufocture- ongoing ond 60% complete.

The overoll works is ol 62% complete. Meonwhile, other government Enoblers
(Roods, Power, Woter, ICT ond Security) hove been engoged to fost-trock
their contribution towords reolizotion of the pork.

ii) Koriokor Common Monufoclurlng Focility
The Koriokor Common Monufocturing focility houses over 200 stolls with over
6000 entrepreneurs/employees. lt is o mojor producers of leother products
(footweor ond leother goods). To improve both the quontity ond quolity of the
leother products, the Council in colloborotion with the Noirobi County
Government is upgroding the cluster through provision of both production
technology ond skills development.

The MOU between the Council ond Noirobi City County Government hove
been signed. The Monogement Advisory Committee (MAC) for smooth
implementotion of the project hos been put in ploce. The three stokeholders
(i.e the Council, the County Government ond the beneficiories) hove eoch
oppointed three (3) Members to the Committee. The focility hos been honded
over to the Council ond instollotion of the mochinery ongoing.
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I
iii) Upgroding of Troining ond Produclion Cenlre for Shoe lnduslry (TPCSI)

TPCSI is o troining institute designed to support the development of the
leother sector through skills development ond common monufocturing focility.
To ochieve the objectives, the Centre is well equipped with both humon
resource ond mochinery. The Council hos procured modern leother
monufocturing equipment ond mochinery to enhonce copocity building ond
offer common monufocturing focilities to MSMES. The outcome of this effort is

to creote employment ond improve micro-economic stobility for citizens. The

upgrode is fully funded by the Government.

iv) Replicolion of Common Monufocluring Modelin lhe Counlles
KLDC is mopping other monufocturing clusters with the intention of replicoting
the Common Monufocturing model in the Counties. Some of the Counties
identified for mopping include Nokuru, Mqlindi, Eldoret, Kisumu, Meru ond
Momboso.

D. MoJor risks focing the Council ond mitigolion meosures
D Finoncio! risk - insufficient funding is hompering delivery of the set torgets.

To mitigote this, the Council will implement Resource Mobilizotion Strotegy
through oppeols to NotionolTreosury ond generote more income internolly.

iD legol/Complionce Risk - The existing regulotory ond policy fromework.
locks sufficient enforcement bocking (KLDC is on o legol notice). To mitigote
this, the Council hos developed the Kenyo Leother Development Policy ond
o droft KLDA bill which ore currently of different stoges of completion.

iil) lnformolion Securlty Risk - The current monuol system is prone to errors,
inodvertent loss of doto ond cyber-ottock thot would odversely offect our
brond identity ond reputotion. To mitigote this, The Council is implementing
Enterprise Resources Plon (ERP) to outomote ond house the processes ond
secure doto.

iv) Reputolionol Risk- the Council brond identity is criticol ond foilure to protect
this would result in deteriorotion of our reputotion ond potentiol loss of
businesses. To mitigote this, the Council continues to reinforce its volue,
policies ond processes with its stokeholders, business portners ond
employees. The Council sholl toke robust oction where necessory, to
protect its trodemorks, brond ond reputotion. The Council sholl olso be
committed to development of communicotion strotegy ond stokeholder
engogement progrommes.

E. Mqleriol orreors in slolulory/finqnciol obligotions
During the period under review, the Council hos no ony moteriol orreors in
stotutory deductions or ony historicol pending bill.
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F The Councll's f,nonclol problty ond serlous goyernonce lssues
The Audit Committee of the Boord ond the Auditor Generol regulorly review
the Council's internol control systems to ensure occurocy of finonciol reports,
efficiency ond effectiveness of operotions ond complionce to rules ond
regulotions. ln the tY 2021-2022, the Council strictly odhered to the code of
ethics especiolly being honest in oll finonciol motters including those reloting
to collections qnd its funding. The oversight bodies hove not reported ony
finonciol improbity or ony governonce issues. il
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I O. ENVIRONMENTAT AND SUSTAINABITTY REPORTING

The Council exists to tronsform lives through the mondote of driving the
tronsformotion of the leother volue choin in the Country from o row
moteriol/semi-processed export driven sector to o finished leother product
monufocturing industry. The strotegic objectives guide the Council to deliver
on its mondote. Below ore outline of the Council's policies ond octivities thot
promote sustoinobility:

o) Sustoinobility strolegy ond profile
The Council is o stote corporotion estoblished under the Kenyo Leother
Development Council Order,20l I (Legol Notice No. ll4 of 9th September,
201 l) with its functions spelt out to drive the government's ogendo on the
development of leother industry. The Council espouses the principles reloting
to public finonce, bill of rights, notionol volues os well os principles of good
governonce, to the extent thot they opply to Public Finonciol Monogement
(PFM). KLDC ploys o significont role in promoting ond odvoncing
occountobility, development, service delivery ond equity through its octivities
ond policy recommendotions. The Council wos estoblished to provide on
objective ond independent fromework for regulotion ond focilitotion of
industry growth. The Council hos monoged to sustoin its operotions using the
onnuol Exchequer ollocotions. Further, it supplements the GoK funding with its

lnternolly generoted income for services of TPCSI, Thiko ond donor support
from time to time besides prioritizing expenditure on need bosis ond in line with
its core mondote.

All over the world, overexploitotion of noturol resources required to ochieve
economic growth ond development hos hod negotive impocts on the
environment while olso cousing these resources to become scorcer ond
costlier. Commitment to develop three quorters of Kenyo's semi-orid lqnd oreo
to support beef ronching leods to increosed livestock products. Volue oddition
of these products impocts positively on economic ond community sociol
stotus. ln Kenyo, the meot processing plonts ore on the increose to support the
meot volue choin. The Council supports the development of hides, skins ond
leother volue choin within the country.

b) Environmenlol Performonce
Environmentol performonce of the Council is guided by the Environmentol
Monogement ond Coordinotion Act, which informed the estoblishment of
Notionol Environmentol Monogement Authority whose mondote is to support
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lnstitutions on environmentol motters. The Council os o Stote Corporotion
complies with this Act ond supports NEMA in meeting its core mondote. This is

seen in the woy the Council disposes woste os well os discouroge the use of
plostic bottles in its offices ond working leother focilities.

KLDC supports ond odvocotes for on enobling environment thot supports
industriolizotion in Kenyo. Competitive ond sustoinoble locol monufocturing
colls for odequote, relioble ond offordoble foctors of production. These ore
onchored on its sustoinoble policies to ensure thot it meets the needs of the
current generotion without jeopordizing the lives of future generotions. The
council's interventions in support to the privote sector by developing
infrostructures specificolly Common Effluent Treotment Plont of the Kenyo
Leother lndustriol Pork is oimed to improve environmentol performonce in
terms of efficiency in resource utilizotion, recycling ond reduction of pollution,
woste & emissions.

c) Employee welfore
The Council hos o Humon Resource Policy ond Procedures Monuol guiding
recruitment ond selection, terms ond conditions of employment ond retention
strotegies. The monuol provides for offirmotive oction e.g oge, gender,
regionol bolonces, ethnicity ond persons living with disobilities. The Council
promotes gender ond disobility moinstreoming, ond hondles stoff grievonces
in line with the requirement of the monuol. The Council olso odheres to Article
234 (1) (g,h,i), (2) (b), of the Constitution, Section 5 (3 o ond b) of the
Employment Act 2007 ond Section 35 (c) PSC Act 2017 gviding the hiring
process.

The Council hos o Performonce Monogement Policy in ploce which detoils the
opproisol, rewords ond sonctions system. The Council olso corries out o Troining
Needs Assessment every yeor ond recommends stoff for competency
development. The Council is in complionce with Occupotionol Sofety ond
Heolth Act of 2007, OSHA. ln oddition, the Council hos o Group Personol
Accident for oll employees.

d) Morkel ploce proclices
Morketploces' most importont volue proposition is to deliver the quolity
demonded to providers ond high-quolity supply to buyers in the most efficient
ond effective monner. The COVID pondemic chonged the normol morketing
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system ond coused shoppers to flock online. lt's been on unprecedented
opportunity for e-commerce bronds, but it hos not been without its chollenges.
One of the biggest ond hordest to overcome is the growing importonce of q
bronds' hondling of customers' doto ond privocy.

i. Responsible competition prqclice
Kenyo Leother Development Council procurement function hos on
estoblished system of competitive ond responsible business proctices
onchored on the Kenyon Constitution 2010, the Public Procurement ond Asset

Disposol Act 2015 ond the Public Procurement ond Asset Disposol Regulotions
2020. The Council mointoins o corrupt free, opoliticol ond competitive
procurement system. Towords this end, the Council:
. Advertises for procurement opportunities through the print medio (MyGov)

qnd further publishes the ovoiloble procurement opportunities in the
Governments' public procurement informotion portol; lenders.go.ke, its

website; www.kldc.go.ke ond noticeboords within the institution. Open
tendering is the preferred method of mojor procurement opportunities in
the Council.

o The Council enforces the requirement on preference ond reservotion
schemes for the criticol sectors of the society by offering of leost 30% of
procurement opportunities to the Youth, Women, Persons Living with
Disobilities (PWDs) ond morginolized suppliers though on open ond
competitive process.

o The Enforcement of Locol Content (Buy Kenyo Build Kenyo) purchoses
ensures thot of leost 40% of oll procurement opportunities is ollocoted to
locol suppliers. This promotes competition for locol goods ond services ond
thus the growth of the locol industry.

o Prequolificotion ond registrotion of suppliers is done through open
odvertisement where oll potentiol suppliers ore given on opportunity to
porticipote. The Council ensures thot the quolified suppliers ore registered
in the vorious cotegories of suppliers. The list gives exclusive preference to
the Youth, Women, PWDs ond the morginolized groups for specific
procurernents to ensure inclusivity ond equity. The prequolificotion list is

published on the Council's website for openness ond public informotion.
. To ensure thot the pricing for goods, works ond services ore within the

morket trends, the Council conducts morket surveys ond further seeks
professionol odvice from experts depending on the procurement needs.
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I

ii. Responslble Supply Choin ond Suppller Relotions
The Council mointoins o responsible supply choin ond supplier relotions
through vorious interventions. These include:
o The Council mokes prompt poyment to its suppliers once the goods,

services ond works hove been certified. There ore no pending invoices from
previous controcts.

. The Council of oll times offers controcts ond LPO(s)/LSO(s) to its suppliers to
signify controctuol obligotion between the two porties. The Council hos ot
no time breoched ony of its controctuol obligotions with its suppliers.

. The Council ensures thot there is o cordiol relotionship with its suppliers
through on open customer service line during working hours ond o
procurement emoil where suppliers engoge the Council on procurement
issues.

iii. Responslble mqrketing ond odverllsemenl
Kenyo Leother Development (KLDC) ensures responsible morketing os on
opprooch thot ensures the MSME's ore not only meeting customers' needs but
olso hoving o positive impoct on them ond the community they're port of. ln
Medium, Smoll ond Micro Enterprises' (MSMEs') leother products, the Council
mops the them to get doto on their porticulors such os their contoct detoils,
the quolity of their products ond their production volume copobilities.
KLDC then connects consumers with the mopped ond opproved MSMEs by
plocing product photos ond contoct detoils in their website.

iv. Producl slewordship
KLDC promotes environmentol monogement strotegy by engoging its MSMEs

on product ofter soles strotegy such os whoever designs, produces, sells, or
uses o product tokes responsibility for minimizing the product's environmentol
impoct throughout oll stoges of the products' life cycle, including end of life
monogement. The greotest responsibility lies with whoever hos the most obility
to offect the full life cycle environmentol impocts of the product.
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T.REPORT OF THE BOARD OF THE COUNCIT

The Boord of the Council submits its onnuol report together with the unoudited
finonciol stotements for the yeor ended June 30,2022, which shows the stote of
the Council's offoirs.

i) Prlncipol oclivities
The principol mondote of the Council is to drive the tronsformotion of the
leother volue choin in the Country from o row moteriol/semi-processed export
driven sector to o finished leother product monufocturing industry. KLDC is

therefore o key driver of the "Big Four" Agendo under the Monufocturing Pillor.
The roodmop to this success is embedded on strotegic objectives which
specificolly oddress the key chollenges focing it. The strotegic objectives qre
oligned to the Council's mondote. While the monogement corries out the doy-
to-doy octivities of the Council, the Boord of Council is responsible for the policy
direction ond evoluotion of the octivities through the vorious committees ond
Boord opprovols.

ii) Results
The results of the Council for the yeor ended June 30,2022 ore set out on poge

I

iii) The Boord of Direclors
The Appointment of the Boord is in occordonce to Section 4 of The Kenyo
Leother Development Council Order, 2011. The members of the Boord of
Council who served during the yeor ore shown from poge vi to vii.

iv) Surplus Remission
The Council did not moke ony surplus during the FY 2021122 ond hence no
remittonce to the Consolidoted Fund.

v) Audllors
The Auditor Generol is responsible for the stotutory oudit of the Council in
occordonce with the Section 16(2) of the Kenyo Leother Development Council
Order, 20.l I ond Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenyo ond the Public Audit
Act 2015.

By Order of the Boord of Directors

SSOC k M. Noor, PhD
Chief Execulive Officer
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S.STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBITTTIES
Section 8l of the Public Finonce Monogement Act, 2012ond Section 

,l3, 
14, 15,

16, 17 ond l8 of The Kenyo Leother Development Council Order, 2011, requires
the Directors to prepore finonciol stotements in respect of the Council, which
gives o true ond foir view of the Council of the end of the finonciol yeor ond the
operoting results of the Council for the yeor ended 30th June, 2022.

The Directors' responsibilities include: -
(i) Mointoining odequote finonciol monogement orrongements ond ensuring

thot these continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;
(ii) Mointoining proper occounting records, which disclose with reosonoble

occurocy of ony time the finonciol position of the Council;
(iii) Designing, implementing ond mointoining internol controls relevont to the

preporotion ond foir presentotion of the finonciol stotements, ond ensuring
thot they ore free from moteriol misstotements, whether due to error or froud;

(iv) Sofeguording the ossets of the Council;
(v) Selecting ond opplying oppropriote occounting policies; ond
(vi) Moking occounting estimotes thot qre reosonoble in the circumstonces.

The Directors occepts responsibility for the Council's finonciol stotements, which
hove been prepored using oppropriote occounting policies supported by
reosonoble ond prudent judgements ond estimotes, in conformity with
lnternotionol Public-Sector Accounting Stondords (IPSAS), ond in the monner
required by the Public Finonce Monogement (PFM) Act,20l2 ond the Stote
Corporotions Act. The Directors ore of the opinion thot the Council's finonciol
stotements give o true ond foir view of the stote of its tronsoctions during the
finonciol yeor ended June 30, 2022, ond of the finonciol position os ot thot dote.
The Directors further confirm the completeness of the occounting records
mointoined, which hove been relied upon in the preporotion of the finonciol
stotements os well os the odequocy of the systems of internol finonciol control.

Nothing hos come to the ottention of the Directors to indicote thot the Councilwill
not remoin o going concern for of leost the next twelve months from the dote of
this stotement.

Approvol of lhe Finonciol Slolemenls
The Council's finonciolstotements were opproved by the Boord on
ond signed on its beholf by:

t

Dr. k M. Noor, PhD Mr Froncls Munywoki
Cholrmon of the BoordChief Execulive Officer
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON KENYA LEATHER DEVELOPMENT
COUNCIL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Leather Development
Council set out on pages 1 to 31, which comprise of the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
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amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of the Kenya and Section 35 of the PublicAuditAct,20l5. lhave obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Kenya Leather Development Council as at
30 June, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public SectorAccounting Standards (Accrual Basis), and
comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Land Without Ownership Documents

The statement of financial position reflects property plant and equipment net book value
balance of Kshs. 1 ,875,662,877 and as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.
However, and as previously reported, the balance includes land valued at
Kshs.44,000,000 where the Training and Production Centre for Shoe lndustry IPCSI) is
located in Thika Town, which was acquired by the Council from Kenya Research and
Development lnstitute (KlRDl). Review of the handing over report indicated that TPCS!
campus was located on a 0.1096-hectare (0.271 acre) plot of land, as perthe Trustee
Deed made on 25 February,1 994 and certificate of title issued on 25 April,1996. However,
the ownership documents had not been transferred to the Council as at 30 June, 2022.

!n the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
equipment balance totaling of Kshs.1,875,662,877 and ownership by the Council of the
land on which TPCSI is located could not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Board Allowances

The statement of financial performance reflects Board expenses of Kshs.11,143,153 as
disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. The amount includes sitting allowances
of Kshs.4,067,500, daily subsistence allowances of Kshs.3,394,280 and other Board
expenses of Kshs.1,304,030. Review of records revealed that payments amounting to
Kshs.2,235,435 paid as sitting allowances, travel allowances and other Board expenses
were not attributable to any Board Member and details of the beneficiaries were not
provided.

ln the circumstances, the value for money and propriety of the expenditure of
Kshs.2,235,435 for year ended 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Leather Development Council
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
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that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There are were no key audit matters
to report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the basis for conclusion on
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance section of my report,
I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Board Composition

Audit review of the Board composition revealed that the team lacked a member with
qualifications in financial management or accounting who is a bona-fide member of a
professional body regulating the accountancy profession contrary to provisions of Chapter
1 of the Mwongozo code of governance on governance parameter 1.1 (6) on governance
practices which require that at least one Board member should be a financial expert,
meaning that he or she has the necessary qualifications and expertise in financial
management or accounting and is a bona-fide member of a professional body regulating
the accountancy profession.
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ln the circumstances, the Board's oversight role on financial matters may not be effective.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether processes
and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Council's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Council or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, the Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Council's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibi I ities for the Aud it

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in

compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordancewith the provisions of Section 7(1) (a) of the PublicAuditAct, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Kenya Leather Development Council for the year ended 30 June, 2022

5



I

a

a

a

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to
sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Council to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA a CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

25 April, 2023
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Kenyo Leother Development Council
Annval Report &flnonclol Slolemenls forlhe year ended 30h June,2022

I O. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAI PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

a

Revenue from non -excho nge lrq nsoclions

G.o.K Gront -Recurrent

G.o.K Gront -Development

Totol 251,500,000 'a62,407,848

6(o) .l51,500,000

6(b) l0o,oo0,0oo

,l51,530,000

10,877,848

Nobs 2021-2022
Kshs

2020-2021

Kshs
Revenue

Revenue ftom excho tronsocfions

Sundry lncome: Services fee of TPCSI

Totol Revenue

7 1,594,069 ,|,546,550

253,094,069 163,954,398

Expenses

Goods ond Services

Employee Costs

Boord Expenses

Depreciot ion ond A mort izot ion

Repoirs ond Mointenonce
Finonce Cost

Operoting Expenses Reloting to Core Mondo'
Tolql Expenses

I
9

l0
ll
12
't3

14

54,451,665

107,794,728

I 1,143,153

14,351,726

979,908

52,367

4,050,940

76,471,458

89,714,88.|

17,509,718

17,264,973

2,387,517

38,378

3,018,220

192,824,487 206,405,146

Surplus/( Deficit ) before Tox

Toxofion
Surplus/(Deficit) for lhe Period

60,269,582 (42,450,748)

60,269,582 (42,450,748)

The notes set out on poges 5 to 30 form on integrol port of these finonciol
stotement.

The finonciol stotements set out on poge I to 5 were signed on beholf of the
Boord of Directors by:

l'r
rvl@

Chlef Executive Officer
k M. Noor, PhD A Juslus Emeri

Ag. Monoger, Finonce & Accounls Chqirmqn
ICPAK No.22547
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Kenyo Leolher Development Council
Annuol Reporf & Finonclol Slolemenfs for lhe yeor ended 30n June, 2022

I I. STATEMENT OF IINANCIAT POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

I Currenl Assels
Cosh ond Cosh Equivolents
Receivobles from excho nge t ro nsoct ions
Receivobles from non-exchon ge t ronsoct ions
lnventories
Totol Current Assels

t5
l6
17

IB

176,953,364
5,729,826

239,O99,721

9,O28,490

684,899,486
628,20s

548,r3B,Br7
6,BIB,3B7

430,811,401 1,240,484,895

2021-2022
Kshs

2020-2021
Kshs

Notes
ASSEI

Non-Current Asseh
Property,Plont ond Equipment
lntongible Assets
Iolol Non- Currenl Assels

Totol Assels

t9
20

1,875,562,877
8,619,681

958,876,995
312,637

7,884,282,557 959,189,633

2,315,093,958 2,199,674,529

UABTUIlES

Currenl Llobllllles
Trode ond Other Poyobles from exchonge tronsoctions
Refundoble Deposit from customers
Totol 152.480.000 97,330.152

21

22

464,OOO

152,0r 5,000

1,392,000

95,938,152

Non -Currenl Uobllllles
Long term Bonowings
Non-Current Employee Benefits Oblifgotions
TotolUobilities

Nel Assets

152,/t80,000 97,330,152

2,162,613,958 2,102,34/.,376

RESERVES

Copitol Reserve
Revenue Reserve
Revoluotion Reserve
Tolol Reserves

1 ,879,490,664
234,241,478
48.881,8r 6

1 ,879,490,664
173,971,896
48,88r,8r 6

2,162,613,958 2,102,344,376

The finonciol stotements set out on poge I to 5 were signed on beholf of the Boord
of rs by:

M. Noor, PhD PA Juslus Emeri
Chief Executive Officer Ag. Monoger, Finonce & Accounls

ICPAK No.22547

Mr Froncis Munywoki
Choirmon
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Kenyo Leother Developmenl Council
Annuol iepod e Flnonclol Slolemenls for lhe yeor ended 30n June, 2022

I2.STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

As ot30 June 2020

SurpluV(deficit) for the period

Tronsfers to Revoluotion reserves

Tronsfer of depreciotion on revoluotion

Copitolgronls received during lhe yeor

As ot30 June 2021

Surplus/( deficit ) for t he period

Tronsfers to Revoluolion reserves

Tronsfer of depreciolion on revoluolion

Asol3O June2022

216,422,644 1,772,071,279 4g,ggl,g16' 2,037,375,73g

(42,450,7 48) (42,450,7 48)

I 07,41 9,396 I 07,41 9,386

173,971096 1,97r,490,664 4g,ggl,gl6' 2,102,344,976

60,269,582 60,269,582

2U,241,478 1,979,490,664 4g,ggl,gl6 2,162,613,959

Nole

i) Revenue Reserve
This represents the net worth of the Council for the period ended 3Un June,2022
ond forms the retoined eornings.

li) Copitol Reserve
This represents the net worth of the Council for the period ended 3Oth June,2022
ond forms the Copitol Reserve.

1

3

Revenue

Reserve

Copitol

Reserye

Revoluolion

Reserye
Iolol



' Kenyo Leother Devetopment Council
Annuol Reporl & Finonclol Slolemenls for fhe yeor ended 30th June, 2022

Government Gronts
Sundry lncome: Services fee of TPCSI

Tobl Receiph

I3.STATEMENT OF CASH FTOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

f 6(d)
7

l0
12
t3
14

23
24

196,882,500

1,594,069
106,147,500

,l,546,550

198,476,559 107,694,050

Boord Expenses

Repoirs ond moint enonce
Finonce Cost
Operoting Expenses Reloting to Core Mondote
Employee costs
Goods ond Services
Tolol Poymenls

Net Cosh FIowsftom Operoling Aclivilies

201,238,842190,294220

(2,762,273) (72,590,170)

I 
.|,,l43,,l53

979,gog
52,367

4,050,940
107,794,728
77,217,746

17,509,718

2,387,517
38,378

3,018,220
86,836,339
70,494,047

Costr Flows from operotlng Acllvilies

Recelpl

2021-2022

Kshs

2020-2021

Kshs

Cosh Flowsfrom ln Acllvlfres
Purchose of Property,Plont,Equipment
Purchose of lntongible Assets

Net Cqsh Flows Used in lnvesllng Acllvllies

25 (596,522,818) (619,757,391)
20 (8,66],031)

(605,183,849) (618,757,39'.1)

Costr f,owsftom finonclng ocllvllles
CopitolGronts
Nel cosh flows used in finoncing qclivllies

6(b) 100,000,000 118,297,234

100.000,000 119,297,234

Nel lncreose/(Decreose) ln Costr ond Cosh Equlvolents (5O7,946,122) (573,050,326)

Cosh ond Cosh Equivolent ot I Jvly 2021

Costt ond Cosh Equivolentos qt30 June 2022
684,899,486 1 ,257 ,949,812
176,?53,364 684,999,496

Note:

The Cosh flow stotement is prepored on the octuol receipts ond poyments, hence
excludes ony occrued omount.

The finonciol stotements set out on poge I to 5 were signed on beholf of the Boord
of tors by:

a

k M. Noor, PhD CPA Justus Emeri Mr. Froncis Munywoki
Chief Execulive Officer Ag. Monoger, Finonce & Accounls Choirmon

ICPAK No.22547
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Kenyo Leother Devebpment Council
Annuol Repoi & Flnonclol Slolcrncnh for lhc ycot cndod 30,tt JunG, ZO22

I4. STATEMENI OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAT AMOUNIS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Explonotion of moleriol vorionce

o) Recurrenl Copltotlon - The odjustment is os o result of deloy in releose of
exchequer gront for the 4tn Quorter ond hence corry-over of some octivities to
the finonciol yeor under review.

b) Developmenl Copitotion - The odjustment is os result bolonce brought forword
from previous yeors for the ongoing project works.

c) Project odmlnistrotive expenses- The Vorionce is becouse of ongoing
implementotion of ERP system.

d) Korlokor Clusler Project- The vorionce is fovouroble due to deloy in
operotionolizotion of the focility os o result of ongoing instollotion of
mochineries by the Controctor.

5

t
Copilolion r5r,$0,m0 37,152,567 r 88,682,567 r 88,652,567

Copilolion rm,m0,m0 597,212,8n 697,212,890 697,242,890

Other lncome r,720,m l,7m,m0 1,591,069 (r2s,e3r

Employee Cosls 107,670,707 5,n2,136 I 13,112,813 t07,791,728 5,618,1 l5

Boord r0,204,m0 r,900,m0 12,104,m0 I l,l 43,1 53 960,847

Use ol Goods & Services 30,075,293 29,255,43r 59,330,724 54,45t,665 4,8n,059

Finonce Cosl 55,000 52,367

Operoling Expenses Reloting lo Core

Mondole

4,200,000 200,m0 4,1m,000 4,0s,910 349,060

Repoirs ond Moinlenonce r,050,m 20,m 1,070,m 979,908 90,0n

Adminislrolive Expenses 33,580,59r 17,219,081 fi,899,672 36,3m,7il 11,598,96r

Clusler Projecl 6,621,218 1,621,218 l,l 51,330 3,466,888

ilil'rotion of TPCSI 10,789,809 r,96,m0 r,869,906 n,094

ol Kenyo Leother Pork 18,908,382 590,870,6r 8 639,n9,m0 636,817,775 2,931,225

Originolbudge Adjustmenh f inolbudget Actuolon Pedormonc Absorplion Noleslo

comporoble edifletence Role(%) moleriol

boss vodOnCe

s3f Ela tn,lrdf,fff i^ltd]I,,tf F^rdEwftniwml
l(shs l($s Xshs ($s ($s

ffieWffiffiffiEU|ImmmJmElm

Recunenl Expendifure

Revenue

H-,qf*Tm
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Kenyo Leother Deve,oprnent Counci,
Annuol Repoil e Flnonclol Slalemenh lor lhe yeor ended 30a June, 2022

I5.NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS

1. GENERAT INFORMATION

KLDC is estoblished by ond derives its outhority ond occountobility from Stote
Corporotions Act (CAP 446, Legol Notice No.l I 4 of 9tn September 2011). The entity is

wholly owned by the Government of Kenyo ond domiciled in Kenyo. The entity's
principol mondote o is to drive the tronsformotion of the leother volue choin in the
Country from o row moteriol/semi-processed export driven sector to o finished
leother product monufocturing industry.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Council's finonciol stotements hove been prepored bosed on historicol cost,
unless stoted otherwise. The preporotion of finonciol stotements in conformity with
lnternotionol Public-Sector Accounting Stondords (IPSAS) ollows the use of estimotes
ond ossumptions. The oreos involving o higher degree of judgement or complexity
or where ossumptions ond estimotes ore significont to the finonciol stotements, ore
disclosed under note 5 of these finonciol stotements. The finonciol stotements ore
presented in Kenyo shillings, which is the functionol ond reporting currency of the
Council. The occounting policies hove been consistently opplied to oll the yeors
presented. The cosh flow stotement is prepored using the direct method. The

finonciol stotements ore prepored on occruol bosis in occordonce with IPSAS ond
PFM Act.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
The Council did not odopt ony new or omended stondord in the yeor 2021122

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POIIC!ES
o) Revenue Recognilion

D Revenue from Non-Exchonge Tronsoctions

Tronsfers from olher government entllies
Revenues from non-exchonge tronsoctions with other government entities ore
meosured of foir volue ond recognized on obtoining control of the osset (cosh,
goods, services ond property) if the tronsfer is free from conditions ond it is

proboble thot the economic benefits or service potentiol reloted to the osset will
flow to the Councilond con be meosured reliobly.

The Council recognizes revenues from exchequer ollocotions when the monies
ore received ond the osset recognition criterio ore met. To the extent thot there
is o reloted condition ottoched thot would give rise to o liobility to repoy the
omount, defened income is recognized insteod of revenue. Other non-
exchonge revenues ore recognized when it is proboble thot the future

6
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Kenyo Leofher Developrnent Council
Annuol Rcpotl & Flnonclot Slotemcnl, lot lhc' yeor- andad gh Jvnc, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contlnued)
economic benefits or service potentiol ossocioted with the osset will flow to the
Council ond the foir volue of the osset con be meosured reliobly.

The Council's policy is to recognizes opportion of development fund to be used
for project odministrotion to the stotement of finonciol performonce ond the
bolonce of Development fund to stotement of chonges in net ossets under
copitol reserve ond subsequently to stotement of finonciol position. Recurrent
Revenue ore fully recognized to the stotement of finonciol performonce.

ii) Revenue from Exchonge Tronsoctlons

Rendering of Servlces
The Councilrecognises revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stoge
of completion when the outcome of the tronsoction con be estimoted reliobly. The
stoge of completion is meosured by reference to lobour hours incurred to dote os o
percentoge of totol estimoted lobour hours.

Where the controct outcome connot be meosured reliobly, revenue is recognised
only to the extent thot the expense incurred ore recoveroble. The Council
recognizes the revenue from rendering of services os on internolly generoted income
in stotement of finonciol performonce.

lnlerest lncome
lnterest income is occrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield
discounts estimoted future cosh receipts through the expected life of the finonciol
osset to thot osset's net corrying omount. The method opplies this yield to the
principol outstonding to determine interest income eoch period. Council sholl
recognise ony interest eorned on occruol bosis in the stotement of finonciol
performonce ond cosh flow stotement.

b) Budget informotion
The originol budget for FY 2021-2022 wos recommended by NotionolTreosury on 30r,
Jvne, 2021 ond opproved by the Boord of Directors on 28th Jvly, 2021 ond
subsequently by the stote Deportment of Livestock. Consequent revisions or
odditionol oppropriotions were mode to the opproved budget in occordonce with
specific opprovols from the oppropriote outhorities. The odditionol oppropriotions
ore odded to the originol budget by the entity upon receiving the respective
opprovols in order to conclude the finol budget.
The Council's budget is prepored on the occruol bosis, thot is, oll plonned costs ond
income ore presented in o single stotement to determine the needs of the Council.
As o result of the odoption of the occruol bosis for budgeting purposes, there ore no
bosis, timing or differences thot would require reconciliotion between the octuol
comporoble omounts ond the omounts presented os o seporote odditionolfinonciol
stotement in the stotement of comporison of budget ond octuol omounts.

J
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Kenyo Leother Oevelopmenl Council
Annuol Repor, & Flnonclol Slolem entt lot lhe yaot cndod 30h June, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENIS (Conlinued)

o) Toxes

Corporolion tox

The Council is exempted from the poyment of corporotion tox os stipuloted in section
219 (3) of the PFM Act regulotion 2015. However, the Council complies with oll other
stotutory obligotions like the PAYE ond withholding toxes.

Soles lox

Expenses ond ossets ore recognized net of the omount of soles tox, except:

i) When the soles tox incurred on o purchose of ossets or services is not recoveroble from
the toxotion outhority, in which cose, the soles tox is recognized os port of the cost of
ocquisition of the osset or os port of the expense item. os opplicoble

ii) When receivobles ond poyobles ore stoted with the omount of soles tox included. The
net omount of soles tox recoveroble from, or poyoble to, the toxotion outhority is

included os port of receivobles or poyobles in the stotement of finonciol position.
Council recognises expenses ond ossets of gross volue.

b) lnveslmenl properly
lnvestment properties ore meosured initiolly of cost, including tronsoction costs. The

corrying omount includes the replocement cost of components of on existing
investment property of the time thot cost is incurred if lhe recognition criterio ore met
ond excludes the costs of doy-to-doy mointenonce of on investment property.

lnvestment property ocquired through o non-exchonge tronsoction is meosured of its
foir volue of the dote of ocquisition. Subsequent to initiol recognition, investment
properties ore meosured using the cost model ond ore deprecioted over o 3Gyeor
period.

lnvestment properties ore derecognized either when they hove been disposed of or
when the investment property is permonently withdrown from use ond no future
economic benefit or service potentiol is expected from its disposol. The difference
between the net disposol proceeds ond the corrying omount of the osset is

recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition. Tronsfers ore mode
to or from investment property only when there is o chonge in use.

c) Property, Plonl ond Equipmenl

All Property, Plont ond Equipment ore stoted of cost less occumuloted depreciotion
ond impoirment losses. Cost includes expenditure thot is directly ottributoble to the
ocquisition of the items. When significont ports of Property, Plont ond Equipment ore
required to be reploced of intervols, the Councilrecognizes such ports os individuol
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Kenyo Leolher Development Council
Annuol Repoil & Frnoncro, SrorGm anh lot rh. yeot Gnded 30r. June, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt SIATEMENTS (Continued)
ossets with specific useful lives ond depreciotes them occordingly. Likewise, when o
mojor inspection is performed, its cost is

recognized in the corrying omount of the Plont ond Equipment os o replocement if the
recognition criterio ore sotisfied. All other repoir ond mointenonce costs ore recognized
in surplus or deficit os incurred. Where on osset is ocquired in o non-exchonge
tronsoction for nil or nominolconsiderotion the osset is initiolly meosured of its foir volue.

The Councilodopts o stroight-line depreciotion policy os follows;

Motor Vehicles 25%
Computers 30%
Furniture, Fittings ond Equipment 12.5%
Plont ond Mochinery 33.3%
Building 2%

Free hold lond ond Copitol work in progress ore not deprecioted. Depreciotion of work
in progress sholl commences when the ossets ore reody for their intended use.

d) Leoses

Finonce leoses

Finonce leoses ore leoses thot tronsfer substontiolly oll the risks ond benefits incidentol
to ownership of the leosed item to the Council. Assets held under o finonce leose ore
copitolized of the commencement of the leose of the foir volue of the leosed property
or, if lower, of the present volue of the future minimum leose poyments. The Councilolso
recognizes the ossocioted leose liobility ot the inception of the leose. The liobility
recognized is meosured os the present volue of the future minimum leose poyments ot
initiol recognition.

Subsequent to initiol recognition, leose poyments ore opportioned between finonce
chorges ond reduction of the leose liobility to ochieve o constont rote of interest on the
remoining bolonce of the liobility. Finonce chorges ore recognized os finonce costs in
surplus or deficit.

An osset held under o finonce leose is deprecioted over the useful life of the osset.
However, if there is no reosonoble cerlointy thot the Councilwillobtoin ownership of the
osset by the end of the leose term, the osset is deprecioted over the shorter of the
estimoted useful life of the osset ond the leose term.

Operoting leose
Operoting leoses ore leoses thot do not tronsfer substontiolly oll the risks ond benefits
incidentol to ownership of the leosed item to the Entity. Operoting leose poyments ore
recognized os on operoting expense in surplus or deficit on o stroight-line bosis over the
leose term.
The Council hos o six (6) yeors leoses with CPA Centre whereby we poy rent on quorterly
bosis. The rights of ownership hove not been conveyed to the Kenyo Leother
Development Council.
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Kenyo Leother Development Council
Annuol Rcpotl & Flnonctol Sto/ramenrs ,or rhe ycot andad 30} Juno, 2022

NOTES TO IHE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (Continued)

e) lntongible ossels

lntongible ossets ocquired seporotely ore initiolly recognized of cost. The cost of
intongible ossets ocquired in o non-exchonge tronsoction is their foir volue of the dote
of the exchonge. Following initiol recognition, intongible ossets ore corried of cost less

ony occumuloted omortizotion ond occumuloted impoirment losses. lnternolly
generoted intongible ossets, excluding copitolized development costs, ore not
copitolized ond expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the
expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intongible ossets is finite ond intongible
ossets ore omortized of 25% per onnum on stroight-line bosis. The intongible ossets
recognized in the Councils books relote to softwore's ond brondings.

l) Reseorch ond Development cosls
The Council expenses reseorch costs os incurred. Development costs on on individuol
project ore recognized os intongible ossets when the Council con demonstrote:
i) The technicol feosibility of completing the osset so thot the osset will be ovoiloble

for use or sole
ii) lts intention to complete ond its obility to use or sell the osset
iii) How the osset will generote future economic benefits or service potentiol
iv) The ovoilobility of resources to complete the osset
v) The obility to meosure reliobly the expenditure during development

Following initiolrecognition of on osset, the osset is corried of cost less ony occumuloted
omortizotion ond occumuloted impoirment losses. Amortizotion of the osset begins
when development is complete ond the osset is ovoiloble for use. lt is omortized over
the period of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the osset is

tested for impoirment onnuolly with ony impoirment losses recognized immediotely in
surplus or deficit.

g) Finonciol inslruments

o) Finonciol ossels
lnitiol recognition ond meosurement
Finonciol ossets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Finonciol lnstruments: Recognition ond
Meosurement ore clossified os finonciol ossets of foir volue through surplus or deficit,
loons ond receivobles, held-to-moturity investments or ovoiloble-for-sole finonciol
ossets, os oppropriote. The Council determines the clossificotion of its finonciol ossets

ot initiol recognition.

Loons ond receivobles
Loons ond receivobles ore non-derivotive finonciol ossets with fixed or determinoble
poyments thot ore not quoted in on octive morket. After initiol meosurement, such
finonciol ossets ore subsequently meosured of omortized cost using the effective
interest method, less impoirment. Amortized cost is colculoted by toking into occount
ony discount or premium on ocquisition ond fees or costs thot ore on integrol port of
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Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Annuot Repor, & Flnonclol Slolemenh for lhc yaot ended 30h June, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

the effective interest rote. Losses orising from impoirment ore recognized in the surplus
or deficit.
Held-lo-molurity
Non-derivotive finonciol ossets with fixed or determinoble poyments ond fixed
moturities ore clossified os held to moturity when the Council hos the positive intention
ond obility to hold it to moturity. After initiol meosurement, heldJo-moturity investments
ore meosured of omortized cost using the effective interest method. less impoirment.
Amortized cost is colculoted by toking into occount ony discount or premium on
ocquisition ond fees or costs thot ore on integrol port of the effective interest rote. The
losses orising from impoirment ore recognized in surplus or deficit.

lmpoirmenl of finonciol ossets
The Council ossesses of eoch reporting dote whether there is objective evidence thot
o finonciol osset of the Council is impoired. A finonciol osset of the Council is deemed
to be impoired if, ond only if, there is objective evidence of impoirment os o result of
one or more events thot hos occurred ofter the initiol recognition of the osset (on
incurred 'loss event') ond thot loss event hos on impoct on the estimoted future cosh
flows of the finonciol osset or the Council of finonciol ossets thot con be reliobly
estimoted. Evidence of impoirment moy include the following indicotors:
i) The debtors of the Councilore experiencing significont finonciol difficulty
ii) Defoult or delinquency in interest or principol poyments
iii) The probobility thot debtors will enter bonkruptcy or other finonciol reorgonizotion
iv) Observoble doto indicotes o meosuroble decreose in estimoted future cosh flows

(e.9., chonges in orreors or economic conditions thot conelote with defoults)

b) Flnonciol liobilities
lnitiol recognillon ond meosurement
Finonciol liobilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 ore clossified os finonciol liobilities ot foir
volue through surplus or deficit or loons ond borrowings, os oppropriote. The Council
determines the clossificotion of its finonciol liobilities ot initiol recognition. All finonciol
liobilities ore recognized initiolly of foir volue ond, in the cose of loons ond borrowings,
plus directly ottributoble tronsoction costs.

Loons ond borrowing
After initiol recognition, interest beoring loons ond bonowings ore subsequently
meosured ol omortized cost using the effective interest method. Goins ond losses ore
recognized in surplus or deficit when the liobilities ore derecognized os well os through
the effective interest method omortizotion process. Amortized cost is colculoted by
considering ony discount or premium on ocquisition ond fees or costs thot ore on
integrol port of the effective interest rote. The intongible ossets ore omortized of 25% of
the initiolcost.

I
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NOIES TO IHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

h) lnvenlories
lnventory is meosured of cost upon initiol recognition. To the extent thot inventory wos
received through non-exchonge tronsoctions (for no cost or for o nominol cost), the
cost of the inventory is its foir volue of the dote of ocquisition.
Costs incurred in bringing eoch product lo its present locotion ond conditions ore
occounted for, os follows:

i) Row moteriols: purchose cost using the weighted overoge cost method
ii) Finished goods ond work in progress: cost of direct moteriols ond lobor ond o

proportion of monufocturing overheods bosed on the normol operoting
copocity, but excluding borrowing costs

After initiol recognition, inventory is meosured of the lower of cost ond net reolizoble
volue. However, to the extent thot o closs of inventory is distributed or deployed of no
chorge or for o nominol chorge, thot closs of inventory is meosured of the lower of cost
ond current replocement cost. Net reolizoble volue is the estimoted selling price in the
ordinory course of operotions. less the estimoted costs of completion ond the estimoted
costs necessory to moke the sole, exchonge, or distribution.

lnventories ore recognized os on expense when deployed for utilizotion or consumption
in the ordinory course of operotions of the Council.

i) Provisions

Provisions ore recognized when the Council hos o present obligotion (legol or
constructive) os o result of o post event, it is proboble thot on outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potentiol will be required to settle the
obligotion ond o relioble estimote con be mode of the omount of the obligotion. Where
the Council expects some or oll of o provision to be reimbursed, for exomple, under on
insuronce controct, the reimbursement is recognized os o seporote osset only when the
reimbursement is virtuolly certoin. The expense reloting to ony provision is presented in

the stotement of finonciol performonce net of ony reimbursement.

j) Conlingenl liobilities
The Council does not recognize o contingent liobility, but discloses detoils of ony
contingencies in the notes to the finonciolstotements, unless the possibility of on outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service potentiol is remote. ln the yeor
under review there were no ony contingent liobilities.

k) Contingent ossels

The Council does not recognize o contingent osset, but discloses detoils of o possible

osset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertoin future events not wholly within the control of the Council in the notes to
the finonciol stotements. Contingent ossets ore ossessed continuolly to ensure thot
developments ore oppropriotely reflected in the finonciol stotements. lf it hos become
virtuolly certoin thot on inflow of economic benefits or service potentiol will orise ond
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

the osset's volue con be meosured reliobly, the osset ond the reloted revenue ore
recognized in the finonciolstotements of the period in which the chonge occurs.

l) Noture ond purpose of reserves
Reserves ore creoted ond mointoined in terms of specific requirements. The Council's
copitol ond revenue reserves ore mointoined for purpose of development projects,
contingent liobilities ond copitol commitments thot become poyoble. Revoluotion
Reserves ore the chonges in fixed ossets since lost revoluotion in 2020.

m) Chonges in occounling policies ond eslimotes
The Council recognizes the effects of chonges in occounting policy retrospectively. The
effects of chonges in occounting policy ore opplied prospectively if retrospective
opplicotion is improcticol.

n) Employee benefits
Reliremenl beneflt plons
Defined benefit plons ore post-employment benefit plons other thon defined-
contribution plons. The defined benefit funds ore octuoriolly volued tri-onnuolly on the
projected unit credit method bosis. Deficits identified ore recovered through lump sum
poyments or increosed future contributions on proportionol bosis to oll porticipoting
employers. The contributions ond lump sum poyments reduce the post-employment
benefit obligotion.

The Council operotes o defined contribution ond defined benefit scheme for its
employees. The defined contribution scheme is odministered by o trustee ond is funded
from contribution from both the employee ond employer ol 7.5% ond I 5% of the bosic
solory respectively. The contributions to fund obligotions for the poyment of retirement
benefits ore chorged ogoinst income in the yeor in which they become poyoble.

o) Foreign currency tronsoctions
Tronsoctions in foreign cunencies ore initiolly occounted for of the ruling rote of
exchonge on the dote of the tronsoction. Trode creditors or debtors denominoted in

foreign currency ore reported of the stotement of finonciol position reporting dote by
opplying the exchonge rote on thot dote. Exchonge differences orising from the
settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of credilors of rotes different from those ot
which they were initiolly recorded during the period, ore recognized os income or
expenses in the period in which they orise. Cunently there ore no foreign exchonge
tronsoctions done.

p) Borrowing cosls
Borrowing costs ore copitolized ogoinst quolifying ossets os port of property, plont ond
equipment. Such borrowing costs ore copitolized over the period during which the osset
is being ocquired or constructed ond bonowings hove been incurred. Copitolizotion

J
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NOIES TO THE FINANCIAt STAIEMENTS (Continued)

ceoses when construction of the osset is complete. Further borrowing costs ore chorged
to the stotement of finonciol performonce.

q)Reloled porlies

The Council regords o reloted porty os o person or on entity with the obility lo exert
control individuolly or jointly, or to exercise significont influence over the Entity, or vice
verso. Members of key monogement ore regorded os reloted porties ond comprise the
Boord of directors, the CEO, divisionol directors. senior monogers ond heod of vorious
deportments within the Council.

r) Service concession onongemenls
The Councilonolyses oll ospects of service concession orrongements thot it enters into in
determining the oppropriote occounting treotment ond disclosure requirements. ln
porticulor, where o privote porty contributes on osset to the orrongement, the Council
recognizes thot osset when, ond only when, it controls or regulotes the services the
operotor must provide together with the osset, to whom it must provide them. ond ot
whot price.

ln the cose of ossels other thon 'whole-of-life' ossets, it controls, through ownership,
beneficiol entitlement or otherwise - ony significont residuol interest in the osset of the
end of the onongement. Any ossets so recognized ore meosured of their foir volue. To

the extent thot on osset hos been recognized, the Council olso recognizes o
corresponding liobility, odjusted by o cosh considerotion poid or received.

s) Cosh ond cosh equivolents
Cosh ond cosh equivolents comprise cosh on hond ond cosh of bonk, short-term
deposits on coll ond highly liquid investments with on originol moturity of three months or
less, which ore reodily convertible to known omounts of cosh ond ore subject to
insignificont risk of chonges in volue. Bonk occount bolonces include omounts held ot
the Centrol Bonk of Kenyo ond of vorious commerciol bonks of the end of the finonciol
yeor. lt is the policy of the Council to disclose the finonciol institutions where such
omounts ore held.

t) Comporolive figures
Where necessory comporotive figures for the previous finonciol yeor hove been
omended or reconfigured to conform to the required chonges in presentotion.

u) Subsequenl events
There hove been no events subsequent to the finonciol yeor end with o significont
impoct on the finonciol stotements for the yeor ended June 30,2022.

L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAIEMENTS (Continued)

5. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENIS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preporotion of the Council's finonciol stotements in conformity with IPSAS requires
monogement to moke judgments. estimotes ond ossumptions thot offect the reported
omounts of revenues, expenses, ossets, ond liobilities, ond the disclosure of contingent
liobilities, ot the end of the reporting period. However, uncertointy obout these
ossumptions ond estimotes could result in outcomes thot require o moteriol odjustment
to the corrying omount of the osset or liobility offected in future periods.

Eslimotes ond ossumplions
The key ossumptions concerning the future ond other key sources of estimotion
uncertointy of the reporting dote, thot hove o significont risk of cousing o moteriol
odjustment to the corrying omounts of ossets ond liobilities within the next finonciol yeor,
ore described below. The Council bosed its ossumptions ond estimotes on porometers
ovoiloble when the consolidoted finonciolstotements were prepored. However. existing
circumstonces ond ossumptions obout future developments moy chonge due to morket
chonges or circumstonces orising beyond Control of the Council. Such chonges ore
reflected in the ossumptions when they occur (IPSAS 1.140)

Useful lives ond residuolvolues
The useful lives ond residuol volues of ossets ore ossessed using the following indicotors
to inform potentiol future use ond volue from disposol:

o) The condition of the osset bosed on the ossessment of experts employed by the
Council

b) The noture of the osset, its susceptibility ond odoptobility to chonges in technology
ond processes

c) Avoilobility of funding to reploce the osset

d) The noture of the processes in which the osset is deployed
e) Chonges in the morket in relotion to the osset

Provisions

Provisions were roised ond monogement determined on estimote bosed on the
informotion ovoiloble. Additionol disclosure of these estimotes of provisions is included
in Note 22. Provisions ore meosured of the monogement's best estimote of the
expenditure required to settle the obligotion of the reporting dote, ond ore discounted
to present volue where the effect is moteriol. The only provision disclosed is on oudit
fees, which is specific.

Projecl odminlslrolive Expenses
The Council's policy is to recognize the whole GoK Gront reloting to copitol project
under development vote to the stotement of finonciol performonce ond the surplus
reolized to the stotement of chonges in net ossets under revenue reserve. During the
finonciol yeor under review on omount of

t5
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NOIES TO THE FINANCIAI STAIEMENTS (Continued) Kshs. 100,000,000 reloting to
development income wos fully recognized in line with this policy ond subsequently to
stotement of finonciol position.

6. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CAPITATION

o) RECURRENT GRANTS

t
lst
2nd
3rd
4th

Sep-20
Dec-21
Feb-22
Apr-22
Jvn-22
Jul-21

Quorterly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion

25,250,000
37,875,000
37,875,000
37,875,000
12,625,W

35,632,500
35.632,500
34,882,500

45,382,500Quorterly Co pitotion

2021-2022
Kshs

2020-2021
Kshs

DescriptionQlr Month

Tolql I51,500,000 151,5{10,000

b) G.O.K GRANT.DEVETOPMENT

Stole Deporlment of [vestock

Development Fund- Projecl odminislrolion

Sub-Tohl

c) G.O.K GRANT - RECURRENI (CASHFLOW)

100,000,000 |9217 2u

100,000,000 107,419,386

10,877,848

lst
2nd
3rd

4th

Sep-20

Dec-21

Feb-22

Apr-22
Jvn-22

Jul-21

Quorterly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion
Quorlerly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion
Quorterly Copitotion

25,250

37,875,000

37,875,000

37,875,000

12,625.,000

35,632,500

35,632,500

34,882,500

45,382,500

2021.2022

Kshs

2020.2021

Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

2020-2021

Kshs

Descriplionah Monlh

Tolol 151,500,000 15I,530,000

7. RENDERING OF SERVICES

Services fee otTPCS|

tub.Tolol

1,594,069 1,546,550

2V21.2022

l(shs

2020.2021

KshsDesoiplion

t6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STAIEMENIS (Conlinued)

8. USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES

Electricity

Woter

Telephone Expenses

Courier ond Postoge

Doily Subsist encce A llowonce

Printing ond Stotioneries

Newspoper Su bscripl ion

A dvert isement, Aworeness & Publicily

Office Renl

Troining Expenses

Medicol lnsuronce

Hospit olity, Su pplies o nd Services

Consultoncy Services

Molor Vehicle lnsuronce

Generol Office Supplies

Security Guord Services

Sonitory & Cleoning Services

Motor Vehicle Fuel ond Oil

Subscription & Membership fees

Audit Fees

Purchose of Uniforms

lnternel Connections

Corporot e Sociol Respons'lbility

ICT systems expenses

Strotegic Plon, Business Plon & ISO Cerlificolion

Tolol 54,451,665 76,471,458

I ,134,856

37,365

28,360

7,923,702

I ,873,1 54

233,460

205,045

21,044,451

633,1 60

I 1,504,859

1,380,022

1,445,909

457,048

7 4,669

2,236,944

1,731,325

1,080,272

132,460

464,000

690,604

100,000

40,000

I ,l 59,097

54,399

9,000

9,450

8,121,991

8,352,208

252,300

1,27 6,615

20,433,673

7 47 ,720

9,692,409

3,073,494

3,377,221

47 6,7 46

5,983,522

1,715,484

1,890,864

443,261

I 13,760

464,000

50,000

347,802

2,142,867

6,283,586

2021-2022

Kdrs

2020-2021

K*rsDerriplion
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EMPTOYEE COSTS

Bosic Solories

House Allowonce

Commuter Allowonce

Leove Allowonce

Olher Remunerotive Allowonce

Pension & NSSF Employer Conlribution

Iotol 107,794,728 8r,714,881

59,m6,410

19,660,320

8,332,886

4,657,083

867,053

15,270,976

53,669,599

I 7,609,394

7,598,227

4,851,177

1,024,718

4,961,776

2021-2022

Kshs

2020.2W1

KshsDesc

IO. BOARD EXPENSES

Choirmon's Honororio

Sitting Allowonces

Doily Subsistence, Trovelling & A ccommodotion A llowonce

Milloge Allowonce

Troining expenses

Medicol lnsuronce

Other boord expenses

Iotol

I1. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZAIION

Buildings

Furnilure ond Filtings

Computer ond Prinlers

lnlongible Asset

Tolol

768,742

4,067,500

3,394,280

555;705

382,800

670,096

1,304,030

957,000

5,284,000

6,811,620

1,507,807

960,000

644,385

344,906

I1,143,153 17,50?,719

2,l6l,l5l

10,936,43/

900, I 5l

353,988

2,I 5l ,l5l

10,870,072

4,032,638

201,1 l3

14,351,726 17,264,973

2021-2022

Kstrs

2020-2021

KstrsDescriplion

2021.2022

K*rs

2020.2021

KdrsDescdplion
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\.Kenyo Leolher Deyelopmenl Council

Annuol RGpotl & Flnanclol Slolemcnh for lhc yaot cndad SOr. June, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

I2. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Mol or Vehicle Mointenonce

Mointenonce of office furniture & equipment

Moinlenonce of Comps, Soflwore ond lnlernet

Mointenonce of plont ond Mochinery

Refurbishment of Buildin gs

Tolol

13. Finonce Cosls

Bonk Chonges

Tohl

I4.OPERATING EXPENSES REI.ATING TO CORE MANDATE

Hides & Skin Quolity lmprovementProgromme

Copocity Building for Seclor Stokeholders

Promotion & Moketing

Tolol

602,289

208,400

169,219

1,194,712

8i,597

390,126

26,700

694,382

979,909 2,397,517

52,367 38,3i8

52,367 38378

1,366,540

1,353,760

1,330,640

6i5,4m

2,U2,820

4,050,940 3,018,20

2021-2022

Kshs

2020-2021

KshsDescriplion

2021.2022

Kshs

2020-2021

l(shsDescriplion

2AnVn
l(shs

2V)0-2Ul

lGhsDescriplion
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Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Annuot Rcpot & Flnonclol Slolcmcnb lor lhe y.ot andad 3Oh June, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENIS (Contlnued)

15.CASH AND CASH EQUIVATENIS

Cunent Accounl

Cosh in Hond

Iolol

o) Cunenl occounl
Flnonclol lnstllullon

KCB Recunent Account
KCB Developmenl Account
KCB Deposit Account
Totol

I6. RECEIVABTES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Prepoymenh

Fuel

Motor Vehicle lnsuronce

Office Rent

Iolol

I 7. RECEIVABtES FROM NON.EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Kenyo Leother Pork Advonce Poymenh

GoK Recunenl Gront

Iolol

I8.INVENTORIES

I
76,?05,017

48,347

684,897,014

2,472

175,?53,W 684,8r?,t86

3,794,474

n,795,079

152,315,464

1,671,907

587,242,890

95,982,217

176,105,017 6u,8?7,014

416,546

141,373

5,171,907

536,8r8

9r,387

5,729,826 6n,205

239,099,721 fi2,756,317

45,382,500

23?,099,721 54&139,817

2021-2022

Kshs

2020-2021

KshsDescriplion

2021-2022

Kshs

2020.2021

KshsDescriplion

2021-2022

Kshs

2V20-2021

KshsDescriplion

2021-2022

Kshs

2020-2021

KshsDescriplion

Generol office stotioneries

ICT Consumobles

Detergenh, Disinfeclont & Soops

Technicol Moleriols

Production Moteriols

Totol

2,229,7s9

4,834,335

506,208

788,635

669,553

1,874,352

3,553,430

275,555

809,200

305,8s0

20

?,t28,4?0 6,818,387



Alend olyeor.June 2019 {4,000,000 31,166,3?2 10,1351t, l2ll5,57l 101,048tr1t 267J50,976 166lr7M

Additions 49,054,91 6 8,848,m 25,7t8,920 83,62,636

Tronsfen/od1u$ments r0805i,543 26,n1,549 ( r08,05i,5431 26,321,549

Revoluolon Goin

Arol30lune20[ fln00,000 108,057J13 3l,l6lJn 8511t,751 2r064J7r 101,049fl6 195,012,3s 576,161,29

Addilions t,t 48,824 43r,460 565,$2,877 567, r /3,r 61

Tro nsf en/odju sl rrrnl s

Revoluolion Goin

Arol30lune202l flJ00n00 108,05u13 3l,l66Jn 80,960,579 21,115,831 t0l,0lgll6 7$,6051S 1,113,331,390

Additions [30,914 3,0m,502 w,252,n4 930,i&3,6il

Ironsfen/odju$rnents

Revoluotion Goin

Arol30June20[ 1{p00000 r08p57J+t 3l,le6i92 E7$M 21,1?6il| l0l,otgfl6 tJ77157,133 2J71,118,00,

Deprecloion or ol 30.06,il2! 2,lll,l5l 3l,le6J9A 15J53,982 I 7,463,1 93 101,048116

I
167,i13,53{

Depreciolion/A molizotion fo the yeor 2,r6l,t5l r0,870,072 4,032,638 r7,063,86r

hpnclofrm or 0130,0e"021 $nfifi 3l,le6i92 2e,121,051 21,{r5l3l l0l,otglle 191,151315

Depreqot'0n/A mfitizolion fo lhe yeor 2, t6I ,l5l I 0,936,43/ 9m,151 I 3,99/,738

Depndollm or 0130,06"0U e/ffiI53 3l,l66J'2 37,360,1?0 22J?5,?82 l0l!flrrt6 I ?8,155,133

44,CI10,fl10 r03,/35,24r

I
60,$6,524

I
750,605,230 9$,876,995A s ol 30 June 2021

lo ndE

Iumifure,

Building llobrvehicles0 fifingr&

[ouiomenb

[Shr l(!hs

CompulenS Plonl& Copibll{ukln

Copiers& Pdnhn lrlochinery Progres

[Shs (Shs (Shs

Iohl

IShsCod

IIIII
Depreciolion ond im poirmenl

iIfl 800( vAttJts

.,, 
l I

Kenyo Leother Developrnen, Council
Annuol Rcporl & Flnoncbl Sfolcrncnh for lhc ycot andad Uh Juna, 2022

NOIES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (Conilnued)

19. PROPERTY, PIANT AND EQUIPMENT

Nole:

i). The Council conied out voluotion of its motor vehicles in the yeor 201 8l2O19.ln
the current yeor, this closs is olso fully deprecioted ond voluotion con be done
once in every three yeors in line with IPSAS 17 ond hence the NBV for FY

2018/2019 forms the depreciotion volue for the yeor under review.
ii). The Plont ond Mochinery is olso fully deprecioted ond voluotion sholl be in the

next finonciolyeor.

ar

a,

a

I

I
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Kenyo Leother Developmenf Council
Annuol Repof, & Flnonclol Slolcmentr for rha yaot ended 30r' June, 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

20.INTANGIBtE ASSETS

2I.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABTES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Audil Fees

Provision of Audit Fees

Tolol

22. REFUNDAB[E DEPOSII FROM CONIRACTORS

Kenyo Leother Pork

Plont ond Mochinery

Pension

Tolol

464,m0

928,000

464,000

464,000 1,392,000

152,016,000 83,465,787

8,382,231

4,090, I 34

152,016,000 95,938,152

As ot30 June 2020 562,600 241,850 804,450

Additions

As ol30 June 202I 562,600 241,850 804,450

Additions 728,000 7,933,031 8,66r,03r

Asol30 tune2022 1,290,600 9,465,481

reclollon os ot 30.06.2020 2?0,7N
Amortizolion for lhe yeor 20r ,r r3

ocot30.06.2021

Amortizotion for the yeor 322,650

reclollon or ot 30.06.2022 603,?50 241,,850 84!i,800

As ot 30 June2021 28r,300 3r,338 312,537

E@EEEITEITET

III-

cosT/vAruATroN Tolol

Amorllzollon & IMPAIRMENT

NEI BOOK VATUES

r, ,,r,,i,),

IEnEllrlilrl

Sohrore Bronding WIP

2021-2022

Kstts

2020.2021

KshsDescriplion

2t21.20n

Kshs

2020.2021

l(shsDescriplion

22



2V21-20n

Kshs

2020-2021

(shs

t
Kenyo Leolher Deve,oprnenf Council
Annuol nepof, & Flnonclol Slolemenh lor thc yaot ended fir, Junc, 2022

NOIES IO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Confinued)

23. EMPTOYEE COSTS (Coshflow)

Bosic Solories

House Allowonce

Commuter Allowonce

Leove Allowonce

Olher Rem unerotive Allowonce

Pension & NSSF Employer Contribution

Totol

24. USE OF GOODS AND SERVICES (Coshflow)

Eleclricity
Woler
Telephone Expenses
Courier ond Postoge
Doily Su bsist dncce A llowonce
Printing ond Stotioneries
Newspoper Su bscript ion
Advert isement, Aworeness & Publicity
Office Rent
Troining Expenses
Medicol lnsuronce
Hospitolity, Supplies ond Services
Cont roct ed Professonol Services
Purchose of coffins
Consultoncy Services
Motor Vehicle I nsuronce
Generol Office Supplies
Security Guord Services
Sonitory & Cleoning Services
Motor Vehicle Fuelond Oil
Subscription & Membership fees
Audit Fees

Purchose of Uniforms
lnternet Connections
Corporot e Sociol Responsibilit y
ICT systems expenses
Strotegic Plon, Business Plon & ISO Certificotion
Releose of Pension

Releose of Relenlion
Totol

23

107,7?4,729 86,836,3i19

I

J
59,006,410

19,660,320

8,332,896

4,657,093

867,053

15,270,976

52,710,095

17,6W,384

7,598,227

4,851,177

1,024,719

3,042,748

28,360
7,923,702

3,718,304
233,460
205,045

26,216,358

633,1 60

I r.504,859
1,380,022

r , t 34,856
37,365

1,445,909

507,034
2,957,717

2,236,944
1,731,325

950,000
132,460

928,000

690,604
r 00,000

40,000
4,090,134

8,382,128

\ ,159,097
54,388

9,000
9,450

8,121,991
7,752,500

252,300
1,276,615

r 5,350,938
747,720

9,592,409
3,073,494

3,377,221

265,017
6,258,344
1 ,715,484
1,890,864

549,200
113,760

s0,000

347,802

2,142,867
6,283,585

2021-2022
K*rs

2020-2021

KstrsDerriplion

77 217,746 70,494,047



t
Kenyo Leolher Development Council
Annuol Ropoi & Flnonclol Slolemenh lor lhe yeor cnded 30t, June, 2022

25. Purchose of Property Plont ond Equipment: Additions

Property Plonl ond equipment: Additions

Less: Retention for the period

Tolol (596,522,818) (618,757,391)

(665,12i,023)

(68,604,205)

(685,071,002)

( 66,31 3,61 I )

2021-2022

Kshs

2020.2021

K$sDescriplion

24



\Kenyo Leolher Deve,oprnenl Council
Annuol l.cporl & Ftnonclot Slolamcnh forfhc ycot cnded ilh Junc,2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

Nole: The difference in figure of use of goods ond services under stotement of
finonciol performonce ond coshflow stotement is os o result of inclusion of
prepoyment of Kshs 5,101,621, occruol of provision for Audit fees of Kshs. 464,000,
releose of pension ond retention of Kshs.l 2,472,262 ond inventories of Kshs. 2,728,1 98
under printing & stotioneries ond Generoloffice supplies.

26. Finoncio! Risk Monogemenl
The Council's octivities expose it to o voriety of finonciol risks including credit ond
liquidity risks. The Council's overoll risk monogement progromme focuses on
unpredictobility of chonges in the business environment ond seeks to minimise the
potentiol odverse effect of such risks on its performonce by setting occeptoble levels.

of risk. The Council does not hedge ony risks ond hos in ploce policies to ensure thot
these risks ore minimised. The Council's finonciol risk monogement objectives ond
policies ore detoiled below:

D liquldity risk monogement
Ultimote responsibility for liquidity risk monogement rests with the Boord to the Council
who hove built on oppropriote liquidity risk monogement fromework for the
monogement of the Council's short, medium ond long-term funding ond liquidity
monogement requirements. The Council monoges liquidity risk through continuous
monitoring of forecosts ond octuol cosh flows. lnsufficient budgetory ollocotions ore
o mojor risk os liobilities will not be settled os scheduled.

At 30 June 2022
Trode poyobles
Cunent portion of bonowings
Provisions

Defened income
Em ployee benefil obliootion

J

44464

Less lhon I
monlh

Kshs'000'

Behreen l-5
monlhs

Kshs'000'

Over 5

monlhs
Kshs'000'

Tolol
Kshs'000'

At 30 June 2021

Irode poyobles
Cunent portion of bonowings
Provisions

Defened income

464 928 1,392

Em e benefil obli
Iolol 464 928 1,392

ii) Morket risk
The boord hos put in ploce on internol oudit function to ossist it in ossessing the risk
foced by the Council on on ongoing bosis, evoluote ond test the design ond
effectiveness of its internol occounting ond operotionol controls.

25
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Kenyo Leother Development Council
Annuol Rapod & Flnonclot Srotemenfr forlhe ycor cndcd 30h Juna,2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

Morket risk is the risk orising from chonges in morket prices, such os interest rote, equity
prices ond foreign exchonge rotes which will offect the Council's income or its
purchosing power. The objective of morket risk monogement is to monoge ond
control morket risk exposures within occeptoble porometers, while optimising the
return. Overoll responsibility for monoging morket risk rests with the Audit ond Risk

Monogement Committee.
The Council's lnternol Audit Deportment is responsible for the developmenl of
detoiled risk monogement policies (subject to review ond opprovolby Audit ond Risk

Monogement Committee) ond for the doy-to-doy implementotion of those policies.
There hos been no chonge to the Council's exposure to morket risks or the monner
in which it monoges ond meosures the risk.

iii) Foreign currency risk
The Council does not engoge in foreign currency tronsoctions ond therefore no
tronsoctionol currency exposures. Such exposure orises through purchoses of goods
ond services thot ore done in currencies other thon the locol currency.

iv) lnlerest rote risk
lnterest rote risk is the risk thot the Council's finonciol condition moy be odversely
offected os o result of chonges in interest rote levels. lts interest rote risk orises from
bonk deposits. This exposes the Council to cosh flow interest rote risk. The interest rote
risk exposure orises moinly from interest rote movements on the Council's deposits.

Monogement of interesl rote risk - To monoge the interest rote risk, monogement
hos endeovoured to bonk with institutions thot offer fovouroble interest rotes.

Foir volue of flnonciol ossels ond liobilities

o) Finonciol inslruments meosured ol foir volue
Determinotion of foir volue ond foir volues hierorchy. IFRS 7 specifies o hierorchy of
voluotion techniques bosed on whether the inputs to those voluotion techniques ore
observoble or unobservoble. Observoble inputs reflect morket doto obtoined from
independent sources; unobservoble inputs reflect the entity's morket ossumptions.
These two types of inputs hove creoted the following foir volue hierorchy:
o Level I - Quoted prices (unodjusled) in octive morkets for identicol ossets or

liobilities. This level includes listed equity securities ond debt instruments on
exchonges.

o Level 2 - lnputs other thon quoted prices included within Level I thot ore
observoble for the osset or liobility. either directly (thot is, os prices) or indirectly
(thot is, derived from prices).

o Level 3 - inputs for the osset or liobility thot ore not bosed on observoble morket
doto (unobservoble inputs). This level includes equity investments ond debt
instruments with significont unobservoble components. This hierorchy requires the
use of observoble morket doto when ovoiloble. The entity considers relevont ond
observoble morket prices in its voluotions where possible.

The following toble shows on onolysis of finonciol ond non- finonciol instruments
recorded of foir volue by level of the foir volue hierorchy:
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Kenyo Leother Deve,qprnenl Council
Annuot RGporl & Flnonclol Stolcmcnh loi thc yaot endad 30t, Juna. 2022

NOIES TO IHE FINANCIAt STATEMENTS (Continued)

Finonciol Assets
Quoted equity investments
Non- finonciol Assels
lnvestment property
Lond & Building
Tolo!

J
145,574,090 145,574,090

Level I Tolo!

AT

level 2 Level 3

Finonciol Assels
Quoted equity i nvestrh ents,
Non- finonciol Assets
lnvestment property
Lond & Building
Tolol

147,735,241 147,735,241
147.735.241 147.735.241

There were no tronsfers between levels 1. 2 ond 3 during the yeor

v) Copitol Rlsk Monogement
The objective of the entity's copitol risk monogement is to sofeguord the Council's
obility to continue os o going concern. The entity copitol structure comprises of the
followin funds:

Revoluotion reserye
Revenue Reserve
Copitol reserve
Tololfunds

Totol borrowings
Less: cosh ond bonk bolonces
Net debt/(excess cosh ond cosh equivolents)
Georlng

2,133,219,775 2,102,W,376

48,88 t ,81 5

133,200,379
r,95r, r 37,580

48,88 t,81 6
173,971,896

1 ,879,490,664

0
176,9s3,364

(176,953,3641

0

684,899,486
(684,899,486)

0% 0%

27. Reloled Porty Tronsoctions

o) Noture of reloted porty relollonshlps
Entities ond other porties reloted to the Council include those porties who hove obility
to exercise control or exercise significont influence over its operoting ond finonciol
decisions. Reloted porties include monogement personnel, their ossociotes ond
close fomily members. The Council is reloted to:

i) The Notionol Government;
ii) The Porent Ministry: Ministry of lndustry, Trode ond Cooperotives
iii) Boord Members
iv)Export Processing Zones Authority (EPZA)

27
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Kenyo Leolher Development Council
Annuot nepor, e Frnoncro, Srorcm enftr lor lhc ycor cndcd iln Jvne. 2022

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (Contlnued)

v) Noirobi City County Government (NCCG)
vi)Key Monogement

b) Reloted porty tronsfers
There were no tronsfers mode to/ond from the top monogement stoff.

c) Due from reloled porties
There were no dues from the top monogement or from the council members during
the yeor under review.

d) Due lo reloted porties
There were no dues to ond from ministries or other deportments during the period
under review.

28. Segment informolion
The Council operotes with County Governments ond specificolly in the proximity of
Noirobi ond does hove bronch in Thiko. Hence IPSAS l8 on segment reporting is not
opplicoble

29. Contingenl ossels ond contingenl liobilities
At the close of business on 30tn June, 2022, the Council did not hove ony contingent
osset or liobility.

30. Copitol Commilments
At the close of business on 30tn June 2022, the Council did not hove ony copitol
commitments

31. Evenls ofter lhe reporting period
There wos no moteriol odjusting events ofter the reporting period

32. Ultimole ond Holdlng Counci!
The Council is o Stote Corporotion/ or o Semi- Autonomous Government Agency
under the Ministry of lndustry, Trode & Cooperotives. lts ultimote porent is the
Government of Kenyo.

33.The Reporling Currency
The finonciol stotements ore presented in Kenyo Shillings (Kshs)

28
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Kervo Leolfer Development Council
Anntlrl/ nepotd & Frnoncro, Slor.rncnh lor thc ycor cndcd 3N June, 2022

APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPTEMENTED BY THE COUNCIT
The projects which the Council undertook during the yeor under review were fully funded
by the Government of Kenyo, through the Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock, Fisheries &
Co-operotives; Stote Deportment of Livestock.

I. PROJECT DETAITS

II. STATUS OF PROJECTS COMPTETIONS

l($s'Mlllion'

I Developmenl of Kenyo

Leot her I ndustriol Pork

GoK 2017-Dole 4,909 No yes

IT EI

Development of Kenyo

Leother lnduslriol Pork 4,809 2,966 62% 100 r00 GoK

Iohl 4,809 2,966 r00 r00
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Kenyo Leolher Developmenl Council
Annuol Report & Flnonclol Stotemenls for lhe yeot ended 3}th June, 2022

APPENDIX III: INTER.ENTITY IRANSFERS

The tronsfers which the Council received during the yeor under review were oll from the
NotionolTreosury, through the Ministry of Agriculture, Livestock. Fisheries & Co-operotives;
Stote Deportment of Livestock.

The obove omounts hove been communicoted to ond reconciled with the porent
Min
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Ag. Monoger, Finonce & Accounts
Kenyo Leother Development Council
ICPAK No.22547

Deputy Accountont Generol
Stote Deporlment of liveslock
ICPAK No.7770

tY 2021/2022 tY 202012021

Kshs. Kshs.

Recurrent Gronts Sep-21 25,250,000 35,532,500

Dec-20 32,875,000 35,632,500

Feb-22 37,875,000 34,882,500

Apr-22 37,825,000

Jun-22 12,625,000

Jvl2l 45,382,500

Tolol 151,500,000 I51,530,000

Development Gronts Sep-21 50,000,000 118,297,234

Moy-22 50,000,000

Totol 100,000,000 1'.18,297 234

Grond Tolol 251,500,000 269,827,234
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